
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

PINOLE CITY COUNCIL  
 MEETING AGENDA 

CITY COUNCIL 
 

Roy Swearingen, Mayor  
Norma Martinez-Rubin, Mayor Pro Tem 

Peter Murray, Council Member 
Vincent Salimi, Council Member 
Anthony Tave, Council Member 

 

TUESDAY 
MAY 19, 2020 

VIA ZOOM TELECONFERENCE  
  

5:30 P.M.  
Please note the early start time. 

 

 

DUE TO THE STATE OF CALIFORNIA’S DECLARATION OF EMERGENCY – THIS 
MEETING IS BEING HELD PURSUANT TO AUTHORIZATION FROM GOVERNOR 

NEWSOM’S EXECUTIVE ORDERS – CITY COUNCIL AND COMMISSION MEETINGS ARE 
NO LONGER OPEN TO IN-PERSON ATTENDANCE.  

 
SUBMIT PUBLIC COMMENTS TO CITY CLERK BEFORE OR DURING THE MEETING VIA EMAIL  

hiopu@ci.pinole.ca.us 
Comments received before the close of the public comment period for that item will be read into 
the record and limited to 3 minutes.  Please include your full name, city of residence and agenda 
item you are commenting on.  Any comments received after the close of the public comment 
period will be distributed to Council and relevant staff after the meeting and filed with the agenda 
packet . 

 

WAYS TO WATCH THE MEETING 
 

LIVE ON CHANNEL 26.  They are retelecast the following Thursday at 6:00 p.m.  The Community TV Channel 26 
schedule is published on the city’s website at www.ci.pinole.ca.us.   
 
VIDEO-STREAMED LIVE ON THE CITY’S WEBSITE, www.ci.pinole.ca.us.  and remain archived on the site for five 
(5) years. 
 

If none of these options are available to you, or you need assistance with public comment, please 
contact the City Clerk, Heather Iopu at (510) 724-8928 or hiopu@ci.pinole.ca.us . 
 
Americans With Disabilities Act:  In compliance with the Americans With Disabilities Act of 1990, if you need 
special assistance to participate in a City Meeting or you need a copy of the agenda, or the agenda packet in an 
appropriate alternative format, please contact the City Clerk’s Office at (510) 724-8928.  Notification at least 48 hours 
prior to the meeting or time when services are needed will assist the City staff in assuring that reasonable  
arrangements can be made to provide accessibility to the meeting or service. 
 
Note:  Staff reports are available for inspection on the City Website at www.ci.pinole.ca.us.  You may also contact the 
City Clerk via e-mail at hiopu@ci.pinole.ca.us . 

Ralph M. Brown Act.  Gov. Code § 54950.  In enacting this chapter, the Legislature finds 
and declares that the public commissions, boards and councils and the other public 
agencies in this State exist to aid in the conduct of the people's business.  It is the intent of 
the law that their actions be taken openly and that their deliberations be conducted openly.  
The people of this State do not yield their sovereignty to the agencies, which serve them.  
The people, in delegating authority, do not give their public servants the right to decide what 
is good for the people to know and what is not good for them to know.  The people insist on 
remaining informed so that they may retain control over the instruments they have created. 

CORONAVIRUS ADVISORY 
INFORMATION: 

 
CLICK HERE for City Updates 

 
CLICK HERE for County Updates 

1 of 141

mailto:hiopu@ci.pinole.ca.us
http://www.ci.pinole.ca.us/
http://www.ci.pinole.ca.us/
mailto:hiopu@ci.pinole.ca.us
http://www.ci.pinole.ca.us/
mailto:hiopu@ci.pinole.ca.us
http://pinoleca.hosted.civiclive.com/city_government/coronavirus
https://www.coronavirus.cchealth.org/


 

Pinole City Council  

Agenda –May 19, 2020 

Page 2 

1. CALL TO ORDER & PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE IN HONOR OF THE US MILITARY 
TROOPS 

 

2. ROLL CALL, CITY CLERK’S REPORT & STATEMENT OF CONFLICT 
An official who has a conflict must, prior to consideration of the decision: (1) publicly identify in detail the 
financial interest that causes the conflict; (2) recuse himself /herself from discussing and voting on the 
matter; and (3) leave the room until after the decision has been made, Cal. Gov't Code § 87105. 
 

3. CONVENE TO A CLOSED SESSION   
Citizens may address the Council regarding a Closed Session item prior to the Council adjourning 
into the Closed Session, by first providing a speaker card to the City Clerk.   
 

A.       CONFERENCE WITH LABOR NEGOTIATORS 

Gov. Code § 54957.6 

Agency designated representatives:  City Manager Andrew Murray, Assistant 

City Manager De La Rosa, Greg Ramirez 

Employee organizations: IAFF 

 

B.       CONFERENCE WITH LABOR NEGOTIATORS 

Gov. Code § 54957.6 

Agency designated representatives:  City Manager Andrew Murray, Assistant 

City Manager De La Rosa, Greg Ramirez 

Employee organizations: PPEA 

 

C.       CONFERENCE WITH LABOR NEGOTIATORS 

Gov. Code § 54957.6 

Agency designated representatives:  City Manager Andrew Murray, Greg 

Ramirez 

Employee organizations: Unrepresented positions- Assistant City Manager, 

Development Services Director, City Engineer, Finance Director, Fire Chief, 

Police Chief, Fire Battalion Chief, Human Resources Specialist, Planning 

Manager, Police Lieutenant, Public Works Manager, Recreation Manager, 

WWTP Manager 
 

OPEN SESSION WILL COMMENCE UPON CONCLUSION OF THE  
CLOSED SESSION WHICH MAY OCCUR BEFORE 7:00 P.M. 

 
 

4. RECONVENE IN OPEN SESSION TO ANNOUNCE RESULTS OF CLOSED SESSION 
 

5. CITIZENS TO BE HEARD (Public Comments) 
Citizens may speak under any item not listed on the Agenda.  The time limit is 3 minutes, and is subject 
to modification by the Mayor.   Pursuant to provisions of the Brown Act, no action may be taken on a 
matter unless it is listed on the agenda, or unless certain emergency or special circumstances exist.  The 
City Council may direct staff to investigate and/or schedule certain matters for consideration at a future 
Council meeting. 
 

6. RECOGNITIONS / PRESENTATIONS / COMMUNITY EVENTS 

2 of 141



City Council   

Agenda – May 19, 2020 

Page 3  

 
A. Proclamations  

1. Recognizing May 17-23, 2020 as Public Works Week 
 

 
B. Presentations / Recognitions 

1.  Update on COVD-19 Crisis by Supervisor John Gioia 
 
 

 
7. CONSENT CALENDAR 
All matters under the Consent Calendar are considered to be routine and noncontroversial.  These items 
will be enacted by one motion and without discussion.  If, however, any interested party or Council 
member(s) wishes to comment on an item, they may do so before action is taken on the Consent 
Calendar. Following comments, if a Council member wishes to discuss an item, it will be removed from 
the Consent Calendar and taken up in order after adoption of the Consent Calendar. 
 

A. Approve the Minutes of the Meeting of April 21, 2020 
 

B. Receive the May 2, 2020 – May 15, 2020  List of Warrants in the Amount of 
$639,510.79 and the May 15, 2020 Payroll in the Amount of $384,860.48 

 
C. Resolution Confirming Continued Existence Of Local Emergency [Action:  Adopt 

Resolution per Staff Recommendation (Casher)] 
 

D. Extend Terms Of Planning Commissioners [Action:  Adopt Resolution per Staff 

Recommendation (Iopu)] 
 
E. Approve And Authorize The City Manager To Execute An Amendment For Two 

Years To The Existing Agreement With Rosenow, Spevacek Group Inc (RSG) In 
The Total Amount Of $112,550 For Affordable Housing Monitoring Services And 
Preparation Of The Housing Successor Agency Annual Report For Fiscal Year 
2019-20 And Approve A Budget Appropriation From The Housing Successor 
Fund [Action:  Adopt Resolution per Staff Recommendation (De La Rosa)] 
 

F. Authorizing The City Manager To Execute A Task Order With RSG, Inc. In The 
Amount Not To Exceed $65,000 To Procure Commercial Real Estate Broker 
Services For The Sale Of Several Former Redevelopment And Housing Assets 
[Action:  Adopt Resolution per Staff Recommendation (De La Rosa)] 
 

G. Adoption Of Sewer System Management Plan 2020 [Action:  Adopt Resolution 
per Staff Recommendation (T. Miller)] 

 
H. Adopt A Resolution Approving The City Of Pinole’s Title Vi Program [Action:  

Adopt Resolution per Staff Recommendation (T. Miller)] 
 

   
8. PUBLIC HEARINGS 
Citizens wishing to speak regarding a Public Hearing item should fill out a speaker card prior to the 
completion of the presentation, by first providing a speaker card to the City Clerk. An official who engaged in 

an ex parte communication that is the subject of a Public Hearing must disclose the communication on the record 
prior to the start of the Public Hearing. 

 
  NONE 
 
 

3 of 141



City Council   

Agenda – May 19, 2020 

Page 4  

9. OLD BUSINESS 
 

A. Consider   A   Resolution   Directing   Staff   To   Fly   The Rainbow Flag During 
The Month Of June [Action:  Discuss and Provide Direction (Murray)] 

 

 
10. NEW BUSINESS 

A. Discussion And Direction Regarding Having City Staff Add A Graphic Promoting 
Census 2020 To Staff’s Email Signature Block [Action:  Discuss and provide 
Direction (Murray)] 

 
11. REPORTS & COMMUNICATIONS  

 

A. Mayor Report 
1. Announcements 

 

B. Mayoral & Council Appointments 
 
C.   City Council Committee Reports & Communications 

 

D. Council Requests For Future Agenda Items 
 

E. City Manager Report / Department Staff 
  
F. City Attorney Report 

 
12. ADJOURNMENT to the Regular City Council Meeting of June 2, 2020 In Remembrance 

of Amber Swartz.  
 

I hereby certify under the laws of the State of California that the foregoing Agenda was 
posted on the bulletin board at the main entrance of Pinole City Hall, 2131 Pear Street 
Pinole, CA, and on the City’s website, not less than 72 hours prior to the meeting date set 
forth on this agenda.  
 
POSTED:  May 14, 2020 at 4:00 P.M. 
 
 
_________________________________ 
Heather Iopu, CMC 
City Clerk 

 

4 of 141



7A 

Pinole City Council  
Minutes – April 21, 2020 
Page 1 

CITY COUNCIL MEETING 

MINUTES 
April 21, 2020 

 
1. CALL TO ORDER & PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE IN HONOR OF THE US MILITARY 

TROOPS 
 
The City Council Meeting was held in the Pinole Council Chambers, 2131 Pear Street, Pinole, 
California.  Mayor Swearingen called the Regular Meeting of the City Council to order 6:00 p.m. 
and led the Pledge of Allegiance. 
 
2. ROLL CALL, CITY CLERK’S REPORT & STATEMENT OF CONFLICT 
 

A. COUNCILMEMBERS PRESENT 
 
Roy Swearingen, Mayor 
Norma Martinez-Rubin, Mayor Pro Tem  
Peter Murray, Councilmember  
Vincent Salimi, Councilmember  
Anthony Tave, Councilmember 
 
 B. STAFF PRESENT 
Andrew Murray, City Manager 
Hector De La Rosa, Assistant City Manager 
Heather Iopu, City Clerk 
Eric Casher, City Attorney 
Tamara Miller, Development Services Director/City Engineer 
Neil Gang, Police Chief 
Chris Wynkoop, Fire Chief 
 
 
City Clerk Iopu announced the agenda was posted on April 16, 2020 at 4:00 p.m. All legally 
required notice was provided.  City Clerk Iopu announced change to the attendees of the 
Closed Session with City Manager Murray and Greg Ramirez as the Agency designated 
representatives.  Announced that public comments would be received by email to the City Clerk 
during the meeting. 
  
Following an inquiry to the Council, the Council reported there were no conflicts with any items 
on the agenda.   
 
 
3. CONVENE TO A CLOSED SESSION   
Citizens may address the Council regarding a Closed Session item prior to the Council adjourning 
into the Closed Session, by first providing a speaker card to the City Clerk.   
 

A.       CONFERENCE WITH LABOR NEGOTIATORS 

Gov. Code § 54957.6 

Agency designated representatives:  City Manager Andrew Murray, Assistant 

City Manager Hector De La Rosa, Greg Ramirez 

Employee organizations: PPEA  

 

 

5 of 141



Pinole City Council  
Minutes – April 21, 2020 
Page 2 
 

B.       CONFERENCE WITH LABOR NEGOTIATORS 

Gov. Code § 54957.6 

Agency designated representatives:  City Manager Andrew Murray, Assistant 

City Manager Hector De La Rosa, Greg Ramirez 

Employee organizations: IAFF 

 

C.       CONFERENCE WITH LABOR NEGOTIATORS 

Gov. Code § 54957.6 

Employee organizations: Unrepresented positions- Assistant City Manager, 

Development Services Director, City Engineer, Finance Director, Fire Chief, 

Police Chief, Fire Battalion Chief, Human Resources Specialist, Planning 

Manager, Police Lieutenant, Public Works Manager, Recreation Manager, 

WWTP Manager 

 

Mayor Swearingen convened the meeting to closed session at 6:02 p.m. 
 

4. RECONVENE IN OPEN SESSION TO ANNOUNCE RESULTS OF CLOSED SESSION 
  
Mayor Swearingen reconvened the meeting at 6:23 p.m. and announced that there was 
no reportable action 
 
Mayor Swearingen gave his report to the public with information regarding the Covid-19 health 
crisis and encouragement to the public to stay safe and contact the City for assistance with 
questions and concerns. 
 

5. CITIZENS TO BE HEARD (Public Comments) 
Citizens may speak under any item not listed on the Agenda.  The time limit is 3 minutes, and is subject 
to modification by the Mayor.   Pursuant to provisions of the Brown Act, no action may be taken on a 
matter unless it is listed on the agenda, or unless certain emergency or special circumstances exist.  The 
City Council may direct staff to investigate and/or schedule certain matters for consideration at a future 
Council meeting. 
 
The following speakers submitted written comments that were read aloud and will be filed with 
the agenda packet for this meeting:  Rafael Menis, David Ruport, James Family & Friends 
 
 
6. RECOGNITIONS / PRESENTATIONS / COMMUNITY EVENTS 

 
A. Proclamations  

 

 
B. Presentations / Recognitions 

 
 
 

 
7. CONSENT CALENDAR 
All matters under the Consent Calendar are considered to be routine and noncontroversial.  These items 
will be enacted by one motion and without discussion.  If, however, any interested party or Council 
member(s) wishes to comment on an item, they may do so before action is taken on the Consent 

6 of 141



Pinole City Council  
Minutes – April 21, 2020 
Page 3 
 

Calendar. Following comments, if a Council member wishes to discuss an item, it will be removed from 
the Consent Calendar and taken up in order after adoption of the Consent Calendar. 
 
The following speaker submitted written comments on Item 7D that were read aloud and will be 
filed with the agenda packet record for this meeting: Rafael Menis 
 
Council members asked questions of staff regarding item 7G.  Staff responded to questions. 
 

A. Approve the Minutes of the Meeting of March 3, 2020 
 

B. Receive the April 4, 2020 – April 17, 2020  List of Warrants in the Amount of 
$621,286.00 and the April 17, 2020 Payroll in the Amount of $400,393.08 

 
C. Resolution Confirming Continued Existence Of Local Emergency [Action:  Adopt 

Resolution per Staff Recommendation (Casher)]  

 
D. Receive The Quarterly Investment Report For The Quarter Ending March 31, 

2020 [Action:  Receive and File Report (A. Miller)] 
 
E. Storm Water Utility Assessments For Drainage Maintenance And The 

National Pollutant Discharge Elimination System (NPDES) Program UA 
[Action:  Adopt Resolution per Staff Recommendation (T. Miller)] 

 
F. Adopt A Resolution To Authorize The City Manager To Execute Cooperative 

Funding Agreements To Receive WCCTAC STMP Funds For Two Capital 
Improvement Projects [Action:  Adopt Resolution per Staff Recommendation (T. 
Miller)] 

 
G. Battalion 7 Automatic Aid Agreement [Action: Adopt Resolution per Staff 

Recommendation (Wynkoop)] 

 
 
ACTION:  Motion by Council Members Martinez-Rubin/Murray to approve Consent 
Calendar Items A-G 
 
Vote:   Passed  5-0 

Ayes:   Swearingen, Martinez-Rubin, Murray, Salimi, Tave 
Noes:   None  
Abstain:   None 
Absent:   None 

 
 
 

 
8. PUBLIC HEARINGS 
Citizens wishing to speak regarding a Public Hearing item should fill out a speaker card prior to the 
completion of the presentation, by first providing a speaker card to the City Clerk. An official who engaged in 
an ex parte communication that is the subject of a Public Hearing must disclose the communication on the record 
prior to the start of the Public Hearing. 
 
  NONE 
 

9. OLD BUSINESS 
 

7 of 141



Pinole City Council  
Minutes – April 21, 2020 
Page 4 
 

 NONE 
 

10. NEW BUSINESS 

 
A. Adopt A Resolution To Authorize The City Manager To Execute The CALWARN 

Mutual Assistance Agreement [Action:  Adopt Resolution per Staff 
Recommendation (T. Miller)] 

 
City Manager Murray presented report and background information on the item. 
 
Council members made comments and asked questions of staff.   Staff responded to questions. 
  
 
ACTION:  Motion by council members Tave/Murray  to Adopt A Resolution To Authorize 
The City Manager To Execute The CALWARN Mutual Assistance Agreement 
 
Vote:   Passed  5-0 

Ayes:   Swearingen, Martinez-Rubin, Murray, Salimi, Tave 
Noes:   None  
Abstain:   None 
Absent:   None 

 
 

 
11. REPORTS & COMMUNICATIONS  

 

A. Mayor Report 
1. Announcements 

 
B. Mayoral & Council Appointments 

 
 

C.   City Council Committee Reports & Communications 
 
 
Mayor Pro Tem provided an update on the Beautification Ad Hoc committee.  Discussed topics 
of the recent remote meeting.  Provided an update on Census activities. 
 
Council member Tave shared website for more COVID-19 information and provided current 
health statistics related to the health crisis. Announced that Assembly Member Wicks is 
addressing concerns for small business owners.  Encouraged local business owners to contact 
him for more information, 
 
Mayor Swearingen reported the upcoming remote meeting of WestCAT. 
 
Council member Salimi announced recent local statistics of the COVID-19 crisis. Stated that we 
have made progress but we have more work to do with regard to testing.   
 
Council member Murray announced that AAA is offering support services related to COVID-19 
and members can reach out to them to find out more. 
 
 

 

8 of 141



Pinole City Council  
Minutes – April 21, 2020 
Page 5 
 

D. Council Requests For Future Agenda Items 
 
 
None. 
 

 

A. City Manager Report / Department Staff 
 
City Manager Murray encouraged the public to check the City website for important information 
on the COVID-19 situation and resources that are available. 
  

B. City Attorney Report 
 
City Attorney Casher announced upcoming meeting of the Municipal Code Update committee.  
Announced that he is working with the other City Attorneys in the region to ensure we are 
keeping with best practices as we navigate the COVID-19 crisis. 
 
12. ADJOURNMENT to the Regular City Council Meeting of May 5, 2020 In Remembrance 

of Amber Swartz.  
 
At 7:10 p.m., Mayor Swearingen adjourned to the Regular City Council Meeting of May 5, 2020 
In Remembrance of Amber Swartz. 

 
 
 

Submitted by: 
 
 
________________________________ 
Heather Iopu, CMC 
City Clerk 
 

  
 
 

9 of 141



10 of 141



11 of 141



12 of 141



13 of 141



14 of 141



15 of 141



16 of 141



17 of 141



18 of 141



19 of 141



20 of 141



21 of 141



22 of 141



23 of 141



24 of 141



25 of 141



26 of 141



   

  CITY COUNCIL  
  REPORT 7C 

 

 
DATE: MAY 19, 2020 
 
TO:  HONORABLE MAYOR AND COUNCIL MEMBERS 
 
FROM: ERIC CASHER, CITY ATTORNEY 
 
  BY:  ALEX MOG, ASSISTANT CITY ATTORNEY 
 
SUBJECT: RESOLUTION CONFIRMING CONTINUED EXISTENCE OF LOCAL 

EMERGENCY 
 
 
RECOMMENDATION 
 
Staff recommends that the City Council adopt a resolution confirming the continued 
existence of a local emergency.   
 
BACKGROUND & DISCUSSION 
 
On March 18, 2020, the City Manager, acting as Director of Emergency Services, 
proclaimed a local emergency pursuant to California Government Code Section 
8630 and Pinole Municipal Code Chapter 2.32. The emergency declaration was 
based on public health and safety concerns for persons and property within the City 
as a consequence of the global spread of novel coronavirus 2019 ("COVID-19"), 
including confirmed cases in Contra Costa County, as well as, the Contra Costa 
County Department of Health’s shelter in place order dated March 16, 2020. The 
City Council subsequently adopted a resolution affirming the City Manager’s 
emergency declaration.  
 
The California Emergency Services Act requires the City Council to review the need 
for continuing the local emergency at least once every 60 days. However, the Pinole 
Municipal Code requires the City Council to review the need for continuing the local 
emergency every 14 days. The City Council last confirmed the continued existence 
of the emergency at a meeting on May 5. To ensure the emergency declaration does 
not expire, it is necessary for the City Council to confirm the continued existence of 
the emergency at this meeting. 
 
In recent weeks, there has been progress in stopping the spread of COVID-19 and 
“flattening the curve”. The Governor, in coordination with the State Public Health 
Officer, has articulated a four-stage framework to allow for gradually relaxing the 
shelter in place requirements, while continuing to preserve public health. However, 
the Contra Costa Health Officer, along with the Health Officer from other Bay Area 
counties, has extended the order for all residents to shelter at home through the 
month of May in response to regional specific concerns. Community transmission of 

27 of 141



City Council Report 7C 
May 19, 2020 

COVID-19 continues to occur, and the number of cases within Contra Costa County 
has continued to rise. There are now over 1060 cases within the County, an 
increase of approximately 200 in the last two weeks. Public health and safety 
concerns for persons and property within the City as a consequence of the global 
spread of novel coronavirus 2019 continue to exist.  
 
If adopted, the declaration of local emergency will remain in place.  In accordance 
with state law and the Municipal Code, the City Council will review the emergency 
declaration every approximately two weeks until the conditions warrant a termination 
of the emergency declaration.  
 
FISCAL IMPACT 
 
There is no direct fiscal impact from the adoption of the resolution ratifying a local 
emergency. However, the City will consider all options available to seek 
reimbursement for indirect expenses and fiscal impacts through the appropriate 
authorities.  
 
ATTACHMENTS 
 
A. Resolution Confirming Continued Existence of Local Emergency  
 
 
 
 

 

28 of 141



ATTACHMENT A 

1 

CITY OF PINOLE 

RESOLUTION OF THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF PINOLE 

CONFIRMING THE CONTINUED EXISTENCE OF A  LOCAL EMERGENCY DUE 

TO COVID-19 

WHEREAS,  Government Code Section 8630 and Pinole Municipal Code Section 

2.32.060 authorize the Director of Emergency Service to proclaim a local emergency when 

conditions of disaster or extreme peril to the safety of persons and property within the territorial 

limits of a city exist if the City Council is not in session and provides that the City Council shall 

ratify the proclamation within seven days thereafter; and  

WHEREAS, in accordance with Government Code Section 8630 and Pinole Code 

Section 2.32.060, the Director of Emergency Services proclaimed the existence of a local 

emergency caused by the Novel Coronavirus (COVID-19), a respiratory disease first 

identified in China that may result in serious illness or death that is easily transmissible from 

person to person, on March 18; and 

WHEREAS, on March 24, the City Council ratified and confirmed the proclamation of 

the existence of a local emergency issued by the Director of Emergency Services; and 

WHEREAS, pursuant to Government Code Section 8630 and Pinole Municipal Code 

Section 2.32.060, the City Council must periodically review the need for continuing the local 

emergency; and 

WHEREAS, the conditions that prompted the original declaration of a local emergency 

continue to exist; and 

WHEREAS, the recitals contained in Resolution No. 2020-13, adopted by the City 

Council on March 24, are incorporated into this Resolution as if stated herein; and 

WHEREAS, while there has been progress in stopping the spread of COVID-19, 

community transmission of COVID-19 has continued to occur;  

WHEREAS, the number of cases within Contra Costa County has continued to rise, and 

there are now over 1060 confirmed cases of COVID-19 within the County, an increase of 

approximately 200 in two weeks, as well as over 30 deaths; and 

WHEREAS, the Governor, in coordination with the State Public Health Officer, has 

articulated a four-stage framework to allow for gradually relaxing the shelter in place 

requirements; and 

WHEREAS, the Contra Costa Health Officer, based on regional specific concerns, has 

extended the order for all residents to shelter at home through the month of May despite the 

RESOLUTION 2020-XX

29 of 141



ATTACHMENT A 

2 

 

Governor’s general framework for relaxing the statewide shelter in place order; and 

 

 WHEREAS, the public health and safety concerns for persons and property within the 

City as a consequence of the global spread of COVID-19 continue to exist.  

 

 WHEREAS, the health, safety, and welfare of Pinole residents, businesses, visitors, and 

staff is of utmost importance to the City and additional future measures may be needed to protect 

the community; and 

 

 WHEREAS, the City may require additional assistance in the future, and a formal 

declaration of emergency allows the City to access resources in a timely manner in a timely 

fashion; and 

 

 WHEREAS, the City Council finds that conditions of extreme peril to the safety of persons 

and property within the territorial limits of the City related to COVID-19 pandemic continue in 

existence; and 

 

 WHEREAS, the City Council finds that extraordinary measures are required to protect the 

public health, safety, and of persons and property within the City that are or are likely to be beyond 

the control or capability of the services, personnel, equipment, and facilities of the City; and 

 

 WHEREAS, the City Council most recently confirmed the continued existence of a local 

emergency on May 5, 2020; and 

 

 WHEREAS, the City Council desires to confirm the continued existence of a local 

emergency within Pinole due to COVID-19. 

 

 NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED that the Council of the City of Pinole hereby 

declares as follows:  

 

1. The local emergency declared by Resolution No. 2020-13 due to the COVID-19 

Pandemic continues to exist within the City of Pinole.  

 

2. During the existence of the declared local emergency, the powers, functions, and 

duties of the City Manager, acting as Director of Emergency Services, and the 

emergency organization of this City shall be those prescribed by State law and by 

ordinances and resolutions of the City of Pinole.  

 

3.  The declaration of local  emergency shall remain in effect until such time that the 

Council determines that the emergency conditions have been abated. 

 

 

 

 

 

 

30 of 141



ATTACHMENT A 

3 

 

PASSED AND ADOPTED at a regular meeting of the Pinole City Council held on 

the 19th day of May, 2020 by the following vote: 

 

 

AYES: COUNCILMEMBERS:  

  

NOES: COUNCILMEMBERS:  

  

ABSENT: COUNCILMEMBERS:  

  

ABSTAIN: COUNCILMEMBERS:  

 

 

I hereby certify that the foregoing resolution was regularly introduced, passed, and adopted on the 

19th day of May, 2020. 

 

____________________________ 

Heather Iopu, CMC  

City Clerk 

 

 

31 of 141



CITY COUNCIL 7D
REPORT  

DATE: MAY 19, 2020 

TO: MAYOR AND COUNCIL MEMBERS 

FROM: HEATHER IOPU, CITY CLERK 

SUBJECT: EXTEND TERMS OF PLANNING COMMISSIONERS 

RECOMMENDATION 

Staff recommends that the City Council adopt a resolution extending the terms of three 
(3) Planning Commission seats. 

BACKGROUND 

The Planning Commission is governed by Chapter 2.40 of the Pinole Municipal 
Code.  It consists of seven (7) members who are appointed by the majority of the 
City Council.  Appointed members serve staggered terms which are typically 
effective May 1 as follows: Three (3) members shall serve a four (4)-year term 
expiring on even years and four (4) members shall serve four (4) years expiring on 
odd years.   

At the April 16, 2019 meeting, the Council made two (2) appointments to Planning 
Commission seats with the term expiration date of April 30, 2020.  Sarah Flashman 
and Joseph Ojeda were each appointed to serve for the remaining one-year period 
of their prospective seats’ (4) year terms, as those seats became vacant mid-term.  
Thomas Brooks was appointed to the Planning Commisison in 2016 and his four 
year term also expired on April 30, 2020.  The remaining four (4) seats of the 
Commission have terms that expire in 2023. 

REVIEW AND ANALYSIS 

Given the impacts of the COVID-19 crisis on staff and the community at large, the 
City has delayed opening the recruitment period to fill the three (3) Planning 
Commission seats with expired terms.  City staff recommends that recruitment 
efforts to fill Commission vacancies begin after the shelter in place order has been 
lifted by County health officials, the City is no longer in a local emergency status, 
and staff can conduct an accessible recruitment.     

With the Planning Commission being a seven (7) member body that requires a four 
(4) member quorum to conduct meetings, and with most decisions requiring a 

32 of 141



City Council Report, 7C 
May 19, 2020  2 

majority of membership to approve an action, it would be problematic to leave the 
seats with expired terms vacant.      

Staff recommends that the Council adopt a resolution to allow the commissioners 
whose terms expired on April 30, 2020 to continue to serve until new appointments 
are made. 

 
FISCAL IMPACT 
 
There are no fiscal impacts associated with this action. 
 
ATTACHMENT: 
 
A  Resolution 
B. Planning Commission Roster 

33 of 141



ATTACHMENT A 

RESOLUTION NO. 2020-___ 

RESOLUTION OF THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF PINOLE, COUNTY OF 
CONTRA COSTA, STATE OF CALIFORNIA, 

EXTENDING THE TERMS OF THREE CURRENT PLANNING COMMISSIONERS 

WHEREAS, the Planning Commission is a seven (7) member body governed by 
Chapter 2.40 of the Pinole Municipal Code; and 

WHEREAS, the City Clerk holds open recruitment for a period of no less than 30 
days and applicants are interviewed by the Planning Commission Interview 
Subcommittee before Commissioners are appointed by the City Council upon the 
recommendation of the Interview Subcommittee; and  

WHEREAS, currently there are three Commissioners that have terms that 
expired on April 30, 2020; and 

 WHEREAS, the Planning Commission requires a four (4) member quorum to 
conduct meetings with most decisions requiring a majority of membership to approve an 
action; and 

WHEREAS, the current COVID-19 Shelter-in-Place order mandated by the 
County limits the public’s ability to fully participate in the recruitment and interview 
process; and 

WHEREAS, the City Clerk will open recruitment when COVID-19 restrictions 
have eased and an accessible recruitment process can take place. 

NOW THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED that the Pinole City Council does hereby 
authorize the commissioners Sarah Flashman, Joseph Ojeda and Thomas Brooks, 
whose terms expired on April 30, 2020 to continue to serve until new appointments are 
made.  

PASSED AND ADOPTED at a regular meeting of the Pinole City Council held on 
the 19th day of May 2020 by the following vote: 

AYES:  COUNCILMEMBERS: 

NOES: COUNCILMEMBERS: 

ABSENT: COUNCILMEMBERS: 

ABSTAIN: COUNCILMEMBERS: 

I hereby certify that the foregoing resolution was introduced, passed, and adopted on 
the 19th day of May, 2020. 

____________________________ 

34 of 141



Pinole City Council 

Resolution No. 2020-__ 
Page ___ 

Heather Iopu, CMC 
City Clerk 

35 of 141



2019 - 2020 ROSTER  

PINOLE PLANNING COMMISSION 

The Planning Commission meets at 7 PM on the 4th Monday each month except when 

there is a holiday conflict.  Additional meetings are held as needed. 

1. Simon Wong

Term expires 4/30/2023

5. Devin Murphy

Term expires 4/30/2023

2. Thomas M. Brooks

Term expires 4/30/2020

6. Ann Moriarty

Term expires 4/30/2023

3. Sarah Flashman

Term expires 4/30/2020

7. David Kurrent

Term expires 4/30/2023

4. Joseph Ojeda

Term expires 4/30/2020
Chair & Vice Chair Effective term:  

May-April 30  

Development Review Subcommittee: 

Chair Wong, Commissioner Kurrent, and 

vacant 

Alternate:  Commissioner Thompson 

Updated 05-01-2019 (Chair /Vice Chair Effective April) 

ATTACHMENT  B

36 of 141



   

 

 CITY COUNCIL  
 REPORT 7E 

 

 

DATE: MAY 19, 2020 
 
TO: MAYOR AND COUNCILMEMBERS  

FROM: HECTOR DE LA ROSA, ASSISTANT CITY MANAGER  

SUBJECT: APPROVE AND AUTHORIZE THE CITY MANAGER TO EXECUTE 
AN AMENDMENT FOR TWO YEARS TO THE EXISTING 
AGREEMENT WITH ROSENOW, SPEVACEK GROUP INC (RSG) 
IN THE TOTAL AMOUNT OF $112,550 FOR AFFORDABLE 
HOUSING MONITORING SERVICES AND PREPARATION OF THE 
HOUSING SUCCESSOR AGENCY ANNUAL REPORT FOR FISCAL 
YEAR 2019-20 AND APPROVE A BUDGET APPROPRIATION 
FROM THE HOUSING SUCCESSOR FUND 

 
    
RECOMMENDATION 
 
It is recommended that the City Council Approve and Authorize the City Manager to 
execute a Amendment for Two Year to the existing agreement with Rosenow, 
Spevacek Group Inc (RSG) in the total amount of $112,550 for Affordable Housing 
Monitoring Services and Preparation of the Housing Successor Agency Annual 
Reports for Fiscal Year 2019-20 and Approve a Budget Appropriation from the 
Housing Successor Fund. 
 
BACKGROUND 
 
The City of Pinole is the Housing Successor Agency to the former Pinole 

Redevelopment Agency. When the former Agency dissolved in February 2012, 

the City inherited its housing assets and functions. California Health and Safety 

Code ("HSC") Section 34176.1 (f) requires the City to prepare an annual report 

summarizing activities in the prior fiscal year related to the former Agency's 

housing assets.  
 

On May 16, 2017, the City approved a 3-year agreement with RSG, Inc. to monitor 
and assure compliance of the City’s affordable housing restrictions for various 
properties as well as to complete the Annual Housing Fund report as required under 
SB 341.   

 

Affordability Compliance Monitoring 
 
This service includes collection and review of controlling documents, agreements 
and funding source guidelines (i.e., HOME, CDBG, NSP, Redevelopment 
Affordable Housing Set-Aside, or Low-Income Housing Tax Credits) for each 

37 of 141



City Council Report 7E 
Meeting Date: May 19, 2020  2 

 

affordable housing project to assure that certified tenant income and tenant rents 
adheres to the maximum income levels permitted requiring a review of the 
owner/property managers' records to ensure that properties are being managed 
and maintained according to the standards set forth by the City, and controlling 
documents.  
 
If follow-up is needed RSG will work with owner/property managers to bring the 
project into full compliance. A database will be prepared for each project so that 
accurate records will be available for compliance monitoring in a format 
acceptable to and accessible by the City. 
The services provided by RSG under this agreement will evaluate the following: 
 

• 7 rental properties with 1 restricted unit at each property 

• 3 multifamily apartments having 2-4 restricted units at each property 

• 2 multifamily apartments having 16-19 restricted units at each property 

• 4 multifamily apartments having 65+ restricted units at each property 
 

SB 341 Reporting 
 
Pursuant to redevelopment agency dissolution, SB 341 created a new requirement 
that successor housing entities provide an annual report that details compliance 
with the expenditure limitations specified in SB 341 during each five-year 
compliance period ("SB 341 Report''). As the successor housing entity to the 
former Pinole Redevelopment Agency, the City is required to annually provide the 
SB 341 Report. The SB 341 Report will detail compliance with expenditure 
limitations, provides an inventory of homeownership units, describes property 
disposition efforts and provide information regarding the Housing Fund 
encumbrances reported on the City's Housing Assets Transfer form, which was 
submitted to the California Department of Finance. 
 
REVIEW AND ANALYSIS 
 
The City has continued to utilize RSG for the past three years and has been satisfied 
with RSG, Inc. service.  On April 30, 2020, the RSG three-year agreement 
concluded.  Due to COVID-19, several of the affordable housing property managers 
have requested for an extension in providing tenants data as the shelter in place has 
restricted proximity to renters.  As such, RSG has not concluded this year’s 
compliance reports.  To maintain continuity and consistency for each reporting 
period, Staff is recommending a two (2) year extension to the existing agreement 
with RSG to complete the 2019 and subsequent compliance reporting.   
 
Staff has reached out the RSG, Inc and they are agreeable to a two-year extension 
while maintaining the same price of $21,000 for FY 2020-21.  For FY 2021-22, the 
price will increase based on the consumer price index.  
 
 
 

38 of 141



City Council Report 7E 
Meeting Date: May 19, 2020  3 

 

 
FISCAL IMPACT 
 
The cost for a two-year extension to the agreement is estimated at $43,050 for the 
period of May 1, 2020 through June 30, 2022.  Given that the funding will cover 
three fiscal years, staff is seeking an appropriation of $3,000 for the period through 
June 30, 2020.  The remainder of the funding, $18,000, will be included in the FY 
2020-21 Budget. 
 
Funding for the services in FY 2021-22 will be included during the preparation of the 
budget from the Successor Housing Agency Fund Balance.   
 
 
ATTACHMENTS 
 
A Resolution 
B 1st Amendment to RSG Agreement 
C Original Contract 
 

39 of 141



ATTACHMENT A 
RESOLUTION NO. 2020-XX 

RESOLUTION OF THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF PINOLE, COUNTY OF CONTRA 
COSTA, STATE OF CALIFORNIA, AUTHORIZING THE CITY MANAGER TO EXECUTE AN 

AMENDMENT FOR TWO YEARS TO THE EXISTING AGREEMENT WITH ROSENOW, 
SPEVACEK GROUP INC (RSG) IN THE TOTAL AMOUNT OF $112,550 FOR 

AFFORDABLE HOUSING MONITORING SERVICES AND PREPARATION OF THE 
HOUSING SUCCESSOR AGENCY ANNUAL REPORT FOR FISCAL YEAR 2019-20 AND 

APPROVE A BUDGET APPROPRIATION FROM THE HOUSING SUCCCESOR FUND 

WHEREAS, with the dissolution of the Redevelopment Agency, the City of Pinole 
inherited its housing assets and functions as the Housing Successor Agency to the former 
Pinole Redevelopment Agency; and 

WHEREAS, California Health and Safety Code ("HSC") Section 34176.1 (f) requires 
the City to prepare an annual report summarizing activities in the prior fiscal year 
related to the former Agency's housing assets; and 

WHEREAS, in May 16, 2017, the Successor to the Housing Agency of the Pinole  
Redevelopment Agency approved a three-year contract with RSG, Inc. for affordable housing 
compliance monitoring and reporting; and  

WHEREAS, due to the COVID-19 pandemic, several of the affordable housing property 
managers have requested for an extension in providing tenants data as the shelter in place 
has restricted proximity to renters; and  

WHEREAS, RSG has not been able to obtain all the necessary documents to finalize 
this year’s compliance reports; and  

WHEREAS, to maintain continuity and consistency for the reporting period, Staff is 
recommending a two (2) year extension of the agreement with RSG to complete the Affordable 
Housing Compliance reporting; and  

WHEREAS, RSG, Inc is agreeable to a two-year amendment, while maintaining the 
same price of $21,000 for FY 2020-21.  For FY 2021-22, the price will increase based on the 
consumer price index; and 

WHEREAS, a budget appropriation of $3,000 from the Successor Housing Agency Fund 
Balance is necessary for the period of May 1, 2020 through June 30, 2020.  The remainder of 
the funding, $18,000, will be included in the FY 2020-21 Budget.   

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED that the Pinole City Council serving as the 
Successor Housing Agency for the former Redevelopment Agency of Pinole does hereby 
authorize the City Manager to execute an amendment in a form agreeable to the City Manager 
and City Attorney with RSG for affordable housing compliance monitoring and reporting and 
authorizes the appropriation of $3,000 from the Successor Housing Agency Fund Balance.  

40 of 141



 

 
 

PASSED AND ADOPTED at a regular meeting of the Pinole City Council held on the 
19th day of May 2020 by the following vote: 

 
AYES:  COUNCILMEMBERS:  
NOES: COUNCILMEMBERS:  
ABSENT: COUNCILMEMBERS:  
ABSTAIN: COUNCILMEMBERS:  
  
I, hereby certify that the foregoing resolution was regularly introduced, passed, and adopted on 
this 19th day of May 2020. 
 
 
___________________________________ 
Heather Iopu, CMC 
City Clerk 
 

41 of 141



ATTACHMENT B 

  

 
AMENDMENT TO THE  

CONSULTING SERVICES AGREEMENT 
BETWEEN THE CITY OF PINOLE AND 

RSG, Inc. 
 

 
This Amendment to the Consulting Services Agreement dated May 17, 2017 (the 
“Agreement”), between the City of Pinole, a general law city and municipal corporation, 
(“City”) and RSG, Inc. (“Consultant”) (together sometimes referred to as “Parties”) is 
approved as of the date executed below. 
 
Effect of Amendment.  The terms and conditions of this Amendment are intended by 
the Parties to modify the Agreement.  To the extent there is any inconsistency between 
the terms of this Amendment and the terms of the Agreement and/or its Appendix, the 
terms of this Amendment shall control. 
 

3. Compensation  
 

1. Fees and Invoices.  CONSULTANT fees shall not exceed $112,550. 
CONSULTANT shall submit invoices to CITY not more often than once per 
month during the term of this Agreement.  Invoices shall contain: (i) the 
beginning and ending dates of the billing period; (ii) a description of the work 
performed during the billing period; and (iii) the total amount payable.  

5. Term of Agreement 

 The term of this agreement shall be from May 17, 2017 through June 30, 2022. 
 
With the exception of the foregoing, all other terms and conditions in the Services 
Agreement, dated May 17, 2017, remain in force and effect.  
 

The Parties have executed this Amendment to the Agreement as of the date 
signed by the City 
 
City of Pinole      Contractor 
      
____________________________  _______________________ 
Andrew Murray       
City Manager         
 
Dated: _____________________   Dated: __________________ 
 
Approved as to Form Attest: 
 
______________________________ ____________________________ 

Eric S. Casher     Heather Iopu, CMC 
City Attorney      City Clerk 
 

42 of 141



ATTACHMENT B 

  

Dated: _____________________   Dated: _____________________ 
 

43 of 141



ATTACHMENT C

44 of 141



45 of 141



46 of 141



47 of 141



48 of 141



49 of 141



50 of 141



51 of 141



52 of 141



53 of 141



54 of 141



   

 CITY COUNCIL  
 REPORT 7F
  
   

DATE: MAY 19, 2020 
 
TO: MAYOR AND COUNCIL MEMBERS 
 
FROM: HECTOR DE LA ROSA, ASSISTANT CITY MANAGER 
 
SUBJECT: AUTHORIZING THE CITY MANAGER TO EXECUTE A TASK ORDER 

WITH RSG, INC. IN THE AMOUNT NOT TO EXCEED $65,000 TO 
PROCURE COMMERCIAL REAL ESTATE BROKER SERVICES FOR 
THE SALE OF SEVERAL FORMER REDEVELOPMENT AND HOUSING 
ASSETS 

 

 
RECOMMENDATION 
 
It is recommended that the City Council authorize the City Manager to execute a task 
order with RSG, Inc. in the amount not to exceed $65,000 to procure Commercial Real 
Estate Broker Services for the sale of several former Redevelopment and Housing 
assets. 
 
BACKGROUND 
 
In 2012, the California State Legislature passed AB 26 and AB 1484 dissolving 
Redevelopment Agencies. In accordance with AB 26 and AB 1484, the City prepared a 
list of all Pinole Redevelopment Agency properties and the Department of Finance 
approved the City’s resulting Long Range Property Management Plan (LRPMP). The 
LRPMP obligated the Successor Agency to dispose of the Pinole Redevelopment 
Agency’s assets, with the sales proceeds to be submitted to the County for distribution 
to the various taxing agencies. In 2015, with approval of the Agency’s Long Range 
Property Management Plan (non-housing assets) by the Department of Finance, the 
assets were transferred to the City. 
 
The former Pinole Redevelopment Agency also had several housing assets that were 
transferred to the City as the Housing Successor Agency.  The Housing Successor 
Agency must sell or use the assets for affordable housing purposes. 
 
In 2016, the City issued Requests for Proposals (RFP) seeking qualified developers for 
four former Pinole Redevelopment Agency properties: 2361 San Pablo Avenue (old 
Pinole Bank), 2301 San Pablo Avenue (corner lot), 297 Park Street (Blackies), and 649 
Tennent Avenue (Collins House).  
 

Following consideration of a couple of proposals for the Blackies and Collins sites, the 
City Council directed staff to issue an RFP seeking specialized services for marketing, 

55 of 141



City Council Report 7F 
May 19, 2020 2 

property value analysis, recommendations as to the best and highest use of the 
properties, and review of purchase proposals for all four properties. 

On April 25, 2019, the City released an RFP seeking proposals from Commercial Real 
Estate Brokers interested in marketing the four properties.  The City received two 
proposals, from Tri-Commercial/CORFAC and RSG, Inc.   

While both firms had experience in the proposed services, on July 2, 2019, the City 
Council approved an agreement with Tri-Commercial. The agreement with Tri-
Commercial provided for a fee of 6% of the sales price if they were to find a party 
interested in developing and purchasing the properties.  Following months of marketing 
and site tours, no proposals were submitted.   

In an effort to expand its marketing outreach, the Council directed staff to market the 
properties under an “open listing” arrangement.  Tri-Commercial stated that an “open 
listing” arrangement would not work for them due to the considerable amount of time 
and money they spent on marketing, showing, qualifying buyers, negotiating and 
preparing offers on our listings.   

REVIEW AND ANALYSIS 

On November 13, 2018, the Council approved entering into On-Call Agreements with 
five companies to provide real estate services to the City.  With approved On-Call 
agreements, when the City desires the services of an approved vendor, a task order will 
be prepared and presented to the Council for approval.   

RSG, Inc. was one of the companies who had been qualified to perform real estate 
services through the 2018 prequalification process.  Moreover, they also were one of 
the companies who submitted a proposal for broker services in April 2019.  Staff 
reached out to RSG, Inc who has expressed interest in marketing the properties.   

RSG, Inc. has over 40 years’ experience in economic development including affordable 
housing development and real estate transactions.   

Below is a summary of the scope of services: 

1. Meet with Council to review goals and expectations for properties.
2. Prepare and Post listings (Costar, Loopnet and in collaboration with real estate

brokers).
3. Prepare Offering Memorandum for Targeted Outreach (Flyers with property and

contact information.
4. Coordination and Management of properties (respond to inquires within 1 day

and provide city with weekly updates and offers)
5. Review offers, pro-forma, and other financial related proposals and meet with

Council to review offers.

56 of 141



City Council Report 7F 
May 19, 2020  3 

6. Work with City Administration on terms and conditions for the sale of the 
properties with buyers. 

7. Coordinating real estate appraisals and review real estate proposals. 
8. Handle all customary activities and services associated with real estate 

transactions 
9. Host site visits to prospective buyers. 
10. Obtain Preliminary Title Reports and Schedule a Phase 1 Environmental 

 
The agreement for the services will be on a time and material basis.  RSG, Inc. will act 
as the City’s representative marketing the property under an “open listing”, showing the 
property and reviewing proposals for the City.  They will also outreach to real estate 
agents/brokers informing them of the availability and sale requirements for each 
property.  This agreement does not preclude any real estate agent from showing the 
properties.  However, any proposals must be submitted to RSG, Inc for review and 
discussion with City staff. 
 
The term of the contract shall be 12 months from date of award. The contract may be 
renewed at the sole discretion of the City Manager for additional terms upon satisfactory 
performance by the firm.  
 
The City Attorney will be primarily responsible for the preparation of the Purchase and 
Sale Agreement (PSA), Disposition and Development Agreement (DDA), if required, 
and/or Affordable Housing Agreements (AHA).   
 
FISCAL IMPACT 

 
Sale proceeds and expenditures associated with the sale of former RDA properties will 
be reflected in Fund 750 and Fund 250 for Housing assets. Funding in the amount of 
$65,000 will be derived to the appropriate Successor or Housing Fund.  Staff and 
Attorney costs related with the sale of the properties will also be paid through the 
proceeds from the sale, as allowed under the dissolution law.  Once the property is sold, 
the City is allowed to pay for the expenditure costs from the sale proceeds. 
 
There may also be a fee, which is unknow at this time, associated with the sale of the 
properties through a real estate agent/broker. 
 
ATTACHMENTS 
 
A. Resolution 
B  Task Order with RSG, Inc./Scope of Service 
C. On-Call Agreement 

57 of 141



ATTACHMENT A 

 

RESOLUTION NO. 
 

A RESOLUTION OF THE CITY OF PINOLE AUTHORIZING THE CITY MANAGER TO 
EXECUTE A TASK ORDER WITH RSG, INC. IN THE AMOUNT NOT TO EXCEED 
$65,000 TO PROCURE COMMERCIAL REAL ESTATE BROKER SERVICES FOR 
THE SALE OF SEVERAL FORMER REDEVELOPMENT AND HOUSING ASSETS 

 
 

WHEREAS, the City, as the Successor Housing Agency and Successor to the 
former Redevelopment Agency, is the owner of certain real properties (the “Lands”) 
located at  2301San Pablo Ave. (corner lot), 2361San Pablo Ave. (old Pinole Bank), 297 
Park Street (Blackies) and 649 Tennent Ave. (Collins) in the City of Pinole, California, 
County Assessor’s Parcel Numbers 401-162-001, 401-162-003, 401-142-010 and 401-
142-011, respectively; and 

 
WHEREAS, the Properties were purchased by the Redevelopment 

Agency/Housing Agency of the City of Pinole (the “Agency”) with Redevelopment funds; 
and 

 
WHEREAS, pursuant to the Dissolution Law the Agency was dissolved on 

February 1, 2012 and the Lands were transferred to the City pursuant to a long range 
property management plan; and 
 

WHEREAS, the Lands are currently vacant and zoned as Commercial and 
Residential Mixed use (CMU/RMU); and 

 
WHEREAS, the City desires to sell the Land for development; and 
 
WHEREAS, on November 13, 2018, the Council approved entering into On-Call 

Agreements with five companies to provide real estate services to the City, which 
included RSG, Inc; and 

 
WHEREAS, on April 25, 2019, the City released a Request for Proposals (RFP) 

seeking proposals from Commercial Real Estate Brokers interested in marketing, 
seeking developers and selling the Lands.; and 
 

WHEREAS, as of the closing date of the RFP, May 23, 2019, TRI 
Commercial/CORFAC and RSG, Inc. submitted proposals; and 
 

WHEREAS, staff is recommending issuing a task order with RSG, Inc. who has 
over 40 years’ experience in economic development including affordable housing development 

and real estate transactions; and    
 
WHEREAS, RSG, Inc submitted a proposal in the amount of $65,000 to act as 

the City’s representative marketing, showing the property and reviewing proposals 
under an “open listing”; and 
 

58 of 141



 

 

WHEREAS, funding for the $65,000 as well as staff and attorney costs related to 
the sale of the properties will also be paid through the proceeds from the sale, as 
allowed under the dissolution law. 
 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED that the City Council of the City of 
Pinole does hereby authorizing the City Manager to enter into a contract with RSG, Inc. 
in the amount not to exceed $65,000 to provide commercial real estate broker services 
for the sale of several former redevelopment and housing assets. 
 

PASSED AND ADOPTED at a regular meeting of the City Council of the City of 
Pinole held on the 19th day of May 2020 by the following vote: 

 
AYES:  COUNCILMEMBERS:  
NOES: COUNCILMEMBERS:  
ABSENT: COUNCILMEMBERS:  
ABSTAIN: COUNCILMEMBERS:  

 
 
I hereby certify that the foregoing resolution was introduced, passed and adopted on 
this 19th day of May, 2020. 
 
 
____________________________ 
Heather Iopu, CMC 
City Clerk 
 

 

59 of 141



ATTACHMENT B 

  

TASK ORDER TO THE 
CONSULTING SERVICES AGREEMENT 
BETWEEN THE CITY OF PINOLE AND 

RSG, INC. 
 
This Task Order to the Consulting Services Agreement dated November 20, 2018 (the 
“Agreement”), between the City of Pinole, a general law city and municipal corporation, 
(“City”) and RSG, Inc. (“Consultant”) (together sometimes referred to as “Parties”) is 
approved as of the date executed below. 
 
Effect of Task Order.  The terms and conditions of this Task Order are intended by the 
Parties to modify the Agreement.  To the extent there is any inconsistency between the 
terms of this Task Order and the terms of the Agreement and/or its Appendix, the terms 
of this Task Order shall control. 
 
Exhibit A – Scope of Work and Budget, hereunto attached, shall read as follows:  
 
Task Order to provide Real Estate “Open Listing” Broker Services in an amount 
not to exceed $65,000.  
 
With the exception of the foregoing, all other terms and conditions in the Services 
Agreement, dated November 20, 2018, remain in force and effect.  
 

The Parties have executed this Task Order to the Agreement as of the date signed 
by the Authority. 
 
City of Pinole      Contractor 
  
      
____________________________  _______________________ 
Andrew Murray     Suzy Kim 
City Manager      RSG, Inc  
 
 
Dated: _____________________   Dated: __________________ 
 
Approved as to Form     
        
 
Eric S. Casher 
City Attorney 
 

Dated: _____________________  
 

60 of 141



CONSULTING SERVICES AGREEMENT BETWEEN 
THE CITY OF PINOLE AND RSG 

THIS AGREEMENT for consulting services is made by and between the City of Pinole ("City") and 
RSG ("Consultant") (together sometimes referred to as the "Parties") as of November 20; 2018 through 
November 20,2022(the "Effective Date") in Pinole, California. 

Section 1. SERVICES. Subject to theterms and conditions set forth in this Agreement, Consultant 
shall provide to City the services described in the Scope·of Work attached as Exhibit A at the time and 
place and in the manner specified therein. In the event of a conflict in or inconsistency between the terms 
of this Agreement and Exhibit A, the Agreement shall prevail. · 

1.1 Term of Services. The term of this Agreement shall begin on the November 20, 2018 and 
shall end . on November 20, 2022, and Consultant shall complete the. work described in 
Exhibit A by that date, unless the term of the Agreement is otherwise terminated or 
extended, as provided for in Section 8. The time provided to Consultant to complete the 
services required by this Agreement shall not affect the City's right to terminate the 
Agreement, as provided for in Section 8. · 

1.2 Standard of Performance. Consultant shall perform all services required pursuant to this 
Agreement in the manner and according to the· standards observed by a competent 
practitioner of the profession in which Consultant is engaged in the geographical area in 
which Consultant practices its profession. Consultant shall prepare all work products 
required by this Agreement in a professional manner and shall conform to the standards of 
quality normally observed by a person practicing in Consultant's profession. 

1.3 Assignment of Personnel. Consultant shall assign only competent personnel to perform 
services pursuant tO this Agreement. In the event that City, in its sole discretion, at any 
time during the term of this Agreement, desires the reassignment of any such persons, 

·Consultant shall, immediately upon receiving notice from City of such desire of City, 
reassign such person or persons. 

1.4 Time. Consultant shall devote such time to the performance of services pursuant to this 
Agreement as may be reasonably necessary to meet the standard of performance 
provided in Section 1.1 above and to satisfy Consultant's obligations hereunder.. 

Section 2. COMPENSATION. City hereby agrees to pay Consultant an amount not to exceed TASK 
ORDER BASED ONLY for all work set forth in Exhibit· A and all reimbursable expenses incurred in 
performing the work. In the event· of a conflict between this Agreement and Consultant's proposal 
regarding the amount of compensation, the Agreement shall prevail. City shall pay Consultant for services 
rendered pursuant to this Agreement at the time and in the manner set forth herein. The payments 
specified below shall be the only payments from City to Consultant for services rendered pursuant to this 
Agreement. Consultant shall submit all invoices to City in the manner specified herein. Except as 
specifically authorized by City, Consultant shall not bill City for duplicate services performed by more than 
one person. 

Consulting Services Agreement between 11/20/2018 
City of Pinole and RSG Page 1 of 23 

\ 

ATTACHMENT C

61 of 141



Consultant and City acknowledge and agree that compensation paid by City to Consultant under this 
Agreement is based upon Consultant's estimated costs of providing the seriices required hereunder, 
including salaries and benefits of employees and subcontractors of Consultant. Consequently, the parties 
further agree that compensation hereunder is intended to include the costs of contributions to any pensions 
and/or annuities to which Consultant and its employees, agents, and subcontractors may be eligible. City 
therefore has no responsibility for such contributions beyond compensation required under this Agreement. 

2. 1 Invoices. Consultant shall submit invoices, not more often than once a month during the 
term of this Agreement, based on the cost for services performed and reimbursable costs 
incurred prior to the invoice date. Invoices shall contain the following information: 

• Serial identifications of progress bills; i.e., Progress Bill No. 1 for the first invoice, 
etc.; 

• The beginning and ending dates of the billing period; 
• A Task Summary containing the original contract amount, the amount of prior 

billings, the total due this period, the balance available under the Agreement, and· 
the percentage of completion; · 

• At City's option, for each work item in each task, a copy of the applicable time 
entries or time sheets shall be submitted showing the name of the person doing 
the work, the hours spent by each person, a· brief description ofthe work, and 
e.ach reimbursable expense; 

,. • The total number of hours of work performed under the Agreement by Consultant 
and each employee, agent, and subcontractor of Consultant performing services 
hereunder, as well as a separate notice when the total number of hours of work by 
Consultant and any individual· employee, agent, or subcontractor of Consultant 
reaches or exceeds 130. hours, which shall include an estimate of the time 
necessary to complete the work described in Exhibit A; 

• The Consultant's signature. 

2.2 Payment. City shall: make payments, . based on invoices received, for services 
satisfactorily performed, and for authorized reimbursable costs incurred. City shall have 30 
days from the receipt of an invoice that complies with all of the requirements above to pay 
Consultant. 

2.3 Final Payment. City shall pay the. total sum due pursuant to this Agreement within sixty 
(60) days after completion of the services and submittal to City of a final invoice, if all 
services required have been satisfactorily performed. 

2.4 Total Payment.· City, shall pay for the services to be rendered by Consultant pursuant to 
this Agreement. City shall not pay any additional sum for any expense or cost whatsoever 

· incurred by Consultant in rendering service.s pursuant to this Agreement. City shall make 
no payment for any extra, further, or additional service pursuant to this Agreement. 

Consulting Services Agreement between 11/20/2018 
City of Pinole and RSG Page 2 of 23 

62 of 141



In no event shall Consultant submit any invoice for an amount in excess of the maximum 
amount of compensation provided above either for a task or for the entire Agreement, 
unless the Agreement is modified prior to the submission of such an invoice by a properly 
executed change order or amendment. · 

2.5 Hourly Fees. Fees for work performed by Consultant on an hourly basis shall not exceed 
the amounts shown on the following fee schedule attached hereto as Exhibit A. 

2.6 Reimbursable Expenses. Reimbursable expenses are specified in Exhibit A and shall 
not exceed Five hundred ($500). Expenses not listed in Exhibit A are not chargeable to 
City .. Reimbursable expenses are included in the total amount of compensation provided 
under this Agreement that shall not be exceeded. 

2.7 Payment of Taxes. Consultant is solely responsible for the payment of employment taxes 
incurred under this Agreement and any similar federal or state taxes. 

2.8 Payment upon Termination. In the event that the City or Consultant terminates this 
Agreement pursuant to Section 8, the City shall compensate the Consultant for all 
outstanding costs and reimbursable expenses incurred for work satisfactorily completed as 
of the date of written notice of termination. Consultant shall maintain adequate logs and 
timesheets in order to verify costs incurred to that date. 

2.9 Authorization to Perform Services. The Consultant is not authorized to perform any 
services or incur any costs whatsoever under the terms of this Agreement until receipt of 
authorization from the Contract Administrator. · 

Section 3. FACILITIES AND EQUIPMENT. Except as set forth herein, Consultant shall, at its sole 
cost and expense, provide all facilities and equipment that may be necessary to perform the services 
required by this Agreement. City shall make available to Consultant only the facilities and equipment listed 
in Exhibit B, and only under the terms and conditions set forth therein. · 

Section 4. INSURANCE REQUIREMENTS. Before beginning any work under this Agreement, 
Consultant, at its own cost and expense, unless otherwise specified below, shall procure the types and 
amounts of insurance listed below against claims for injuries to persons or damages to property that .may 
arise from or in connection with the performance of the work hereunder by the Consultant and its agents, 
representatives, employees, and subcontractors. Consistent with the following provisions, Consultant shall 
provide proof satisfactory to City of such insurance that meets the requirements.of this section and under 
forms of insurance satisfactory in all respects to the City. Consultant shall maintain the insurance policies 
required by this section throughout the term of this Agreement. The cost of such insurance shall be 
included in the Consultant's bid. Consultant shall not allow any subcontractor to commence work on any · 
subcontract until Consultant has obtained all insurance required herein for the subcontractor(s) and 
provided evidence thereof to City. Verification of the required insurance shall be submitted and made part· 
of this Agreement prior to execution. ·. 

Consulting Services Agreement between 11/20/2018 
City of Pinole and RSG . Page 3of 23 

63 of 141



4.1 Workers' Compensation. Consultant shall,. at its sole cost and expense, maintain 
Statutory Workers' Compensation Insurance and Employer's Liability Insurance for any . 
and all persons employed directly or indirectly by Consultant. The Statutory Workers'· 
Compensation Insurance and Employer's Liability Insurance shall be provided with limits of 
not less than ONE. MILLION DOLLARS ($1,000,000.00) per accident. In the alternative, 
Consultant may rely on a self-insurance program to meet those requirements, but only ,if 
the program of self-insurance complies fully with the provisions of the California Labor 
Code. Determination of whether a self-insurance program meets the standards of the 
Labor Code shall be solely in the discretion of the City. The insurer, if insurance is 
provided, or the Consultant, if a program of self-insurance is provided, shall waive all rights 
of subrogation against the City and its officers, officials, employees, and volunteers for loss 
arising from work performed under this Agreement. · 

4.2 Commercial General and Automobile Liability Insurance. 

4.2.1 General requirements. Consultant, at its own cost and expense, shall maintain 
commercial general and automobile liability insurance for· the term of this 
Agreement in an amount not less than ONE MILLION DOLLARS ($1,000,000.00) 
per occurrence, combined single limit coverage for risks associated with the work 
contemplated by this Agreement. If a Commercial General Liability Insurance or an 
Automobile Liability form or other form with ·a general aggregate limit is used,. 
either the .general aggregate limit shall apply separately to the work to be 
performed under this Agreement o~ the general aggregate limit shall be at least 
twice the required occurrence limit. Such coverage shall in.elude but shall not be 
limited to, protection against claims arising from bodily and personal injury, 
including death resulting there from, and damage to property· resulting from 
activities contemplated under this Agreement, including the use of owned and non
owned automobiles. 

4.2.2 Minimum scope of coverage. Commercial general coverage shall be at least as 
.broad as Insurance Services Office Commercial General liability occurrence form 
·CG 0001 (ed. 11/88) or GL 0002 (ed.1/73) covering comprehensive General 
Liability and Insurance Services Office form number GL 0404 covering Broad 
Form Comprehensive General Liability. Automobile coverage shall be at least as 
broad as Insurance Services Office Automobile Liability form CA 0001 (ed. 12/90) 
Code 1. No endorsement shall be attached limiting the coverage. 

4.2.3 Additional requirements. Each of the following shall be included in the 
insurance coverage or added as a certified endorsement to the policy: 

a. The insurance shall cover on an occurrence or an accident basis, and not · 
on a claims-made basis. 

Consulting Services Agreement between 11/20/2018 
City of Pinole and RSG · Page 4 of 23 

64 of 141



b. Any failure of Consultant to comply with reporting provisions of the policy 
shall not affect coverage provided to City and its officers, employees, 
agents, and volunteers. 

4.3 Professional Liability Insurance. 

4.3.1 General requirements. Consultant, at its own cost and expense, shall maintain 
for the period covered by this Agreement professional liability insurance for 
licensed professionals performing work pursuant to this Agreement in an amount 
not less than ONE MILLION DOLLARS ($1,000,000) covering the licensed 
professionals' errors and omissions. Any deductible or self-insured retention shall 
not exceed $150,000 per claim. 

4.3.2 Claims-made limitations. The following provisions shall apply if the professional 
liability coverage is written on a claims-made form: 

a. The retroactive date of the policy must be shown and must be before the 
date of the Agreement. 

b. Insurance must be maintained and evidence of insurance must be 
provided for at least five years after completion of the Agreement or the 
work, so long as commercially available at reasonable rates. 

c. If coverage is canceled or not renewed and it is not replaced with another 
claims-made policy form with a retroactive date that precedes the date of 
this Agreement, Consultant must provide extended reporting coverage for 
a minimum of five years after completion of the Agreement or the work. 
The City shall have the right to exercise, at the Consultant's sole cost and 
expense, any extended reporting provisions of the policy, if the Consultant 
cancels or does not renew the coverage. 

d. A copy of the claim reporting requirements must be submitted to the City 
prior to the commencement of any work under this Agreement. 

4.4 All Policies Requirements. 

4.4.1 Acceptability of insurers. All insurance required by this section is to be placed 
with insurers with a Bests' rating of no less than A:Vll. 

4.4.2 Verification of coverage. Prior to beginning any work under this Agreement, 
Consultant shall furnish City with complete certified copies of all policies, including 
complete certified copies of all endorsements. All copies of policies and certified 
endorsements shall show the signature of a person authorized by that insurer to 
bind coverage on its behalf. 

Consulting Services Agreement between 11/20/2018 
City of Pinole and RSG Page 5 of 23 

65 of 141



4.4.3 Notice of Reduction in or Cancellation of Coverage. A certified endorsement 
shall be attached to all insurance obtained pursuant to this Agreement stating that 
coverage shall not be suspended, voided, canceled by either party, or reduced in 
coverage or in limits, except after thirty (30) days' prior. written notice by certified 
mail, return receipt requested, has been given to the City. In the event that any 
coverage required by this section is reduced, limited, cancelled, or materially 
affected in any other manner, Consultant shall provide written notice to City at 
Consultant's earliest possible. opportunity and in no case later than ten (10) 
working days after Consultant is notified of the change in coverage; 

4.4.4 Wasting Policies. No policy required by this Section 4 shall include a "wasting" 
policy limit (i.e. limit that is eroded by the cost of defense) with the exception of 
errors and omissions insurance. 

4.4.5 · Additional insured; primary insurance. A certified endorsement at least as 
broad as Insurance Services Office form number CG 20 10 (11/85 ed.) shall be 
attached to all policies stating that the City and its officers, employees, agents, and 
volunteers shall be covered as additional insured's with respect to each of the 
following: liability arising out of activities performed by or on behalf of Consultant, 
including the insured's general supervision of Consultant; products and completed 
operations of Consultant, as applicable; premises owned, occupied, or used by 
Consultant; and automobiles owned, leased, or used by the Consultant in the 
course of providing services pursuant to this Agreement. The coverage shall 
contain no special limitations on the scope of protection afforded to City or its 
officers, employees, agents, or volunteers. 

A certified endorsement shall be attached to all policies stating that coverage is 
primary insurance with respect to the City and its officers, officials, employees and 
volunteers, and that no insurance or self-insurance maintained by the City shall be 
called upon to contribute to a loss under the coverage. 

4.4.6 Deductibles and Self-Insured Retentions. Consultant shall disclose to and 
obtain the approval of City for the self-insured retentions and deductibles before · 
beginning any of the services or work called for by any term of this Agreement. 

During the period covered by this Agreement, only upon the prior express written 
authorization of Contract Administrator, Consultant may increase such deductibles 
or self-insured retentions with respect to City, its officers, employees, agents, and 
volunteers. The Contract Administrator may condition approval of an increase in 
deductible or self-insured retention levels with a requirement that Consultant 
procure a bond, guaranteeing payment of losses and related investigations, claim 
administration, and defense expenses that is satisfactory in all respects to each of 
them. 

Consulting Services Agreement between 11/20/2018 
City of Pinole and RSG Page 6 of 23 

66 of 141



4.4.7 Subcontractors. Consultant shall include all subcontractors as insured's under 
its policies or .shall furnish separate certificates and certified endorsements for 
each subcontractor. All coverage's for subcontractors shall be subject to all of the 
requirements stated herein. . 

4.4.8 Variation. The City may approve a variation in the foregoing insurance 
requirements, upon a determination that the coverage, scope, limits, and forms of 
such insurance are either not commercially available, or that the City's interests 
are otherwise fully protected. 

4.5 Remedies. In addition to any other remedies City may have if Consultant fails to provide 
or maintain any insurance policies or policy endorsements to the extent and within the time 
herein required, City may, at its sole option exercise any of the following remedies, which 
are alternatives to other remedies City may have and are not the exclusive remedy for 
Consultant's breach: 

• Obtain such insurance and deduct and retain the amount of the premiums for such 
insurance from any sums due under the Agreement; 

• Order Consultant to stop work under this Agreement or withhold any payment that 
becomes due to Consultant hereunder, or both stop work and withhold any payment, 
until Consultant demonstrates compliance with the requirements hereof; and/or 

• Terminate this Agreement. 

Section 5. INDEMNIFICATION AND CONSULTANT'S RESPONSIBILITIES. Consultant shall 
indemnify, defend with counsel reasonably acceptable to the City, and hold harmless the City and its 
officials, officers, employees, agents, and volunteers from and against any and all losses, liability, claims, 
suits, actions, damages, and causes of action arising out of any personal injury, bodily injury, loss of life, or 
damage to property, or any violation of any federal, state, or municipal law or ordinance, to the extent 
caused, in whole or in part, by the willful misconduct or negligent acts or omissions of Consultant or its 
employees, subcontractors, or agents, by acts for which they could be held strictly liable, or by the quality 
or character of theirwork. The foregoing obligation of Consultant shall not apply when (1) the injury, loss of 
life, damage to property, or violation of law arises wholly from the negligence or willful misconduct of the 
City or its officers, employees, agents, or volunteers and (2) the actions of Consultant or its employees, 
subcontractor, or agents have contributed in no part to the injury, loss of life; damage to property, or 
violation of law. It is understood that the duty of Consultant to indemnify and hold harmless includes the 
duty to defend as set forth in Section 2778 of the California Civil· Code.. Acceptance by City of insurance 
certificates and. endorsements required under this Agreement does not relieve Consultant from liability 
under this indemnification and hold harmless clause. This indemnification and hold harmless clause shall 
apply to any damages or claims for damages whether or not such insurance policies shall have been 
determined to apply .. By execution of this Agreement, Consultant acknowledges and agrees to the 
provisions of this Section and that it is a material element of consideration. 

Consulting Services Agreement between 11/20/2018 
City of Pinole and RSG Page 7 of 23 

67 of 141



In the event that Consultant or any employee, agent, or subcontractor of Consultant providing services 
under this Agreement is determined by a court of competent jurisdiction or the California Public Employees · 
Retirement System (PERS) to be eligible for enrollment in PERS as an employee of City, Consultant shall 
indemnify, defend, and hold harmless City for the payment of any employee and/or employer contributions 
for PERS benefits on behalf of Consultant or its employees, agents, or subcontractors, as well as for the 
payment of any penalties and interest on such contributions, which would. otherwise be the responsibility of 
City. 

Section 6. STATUS OF CONSUL TANT. 

6.1 Independent Contractor. At all times during the term of this Agreement, Consultant shall 
be an independent contractor and shall not be an employee of City. City shall have the 
right to control Consultant only insofar as the results of Consultant's services rendered 
pursuant to this Agreement and assignment of personnel pursuant to Subparagraph 1.3; 

, however, otherwise City shall not have the right to control the means by which Consultant 
accomplishes services rendered pursuant to this Agreement. Notwithstanding any other 
City, state, or federal policy, rule, regulation, law, or ordinance to the contrary, Consultant 
and any of its employees, agents, and subcontractors providing services under this 
Agreement shall not qualify for or become entitled to, and hereby agree to waive any and 
all claims to, any compensation, benefit, or any incident of employment by City, including 
but not limited to eligibility to enroll in the California Public Employees Retirement System 
(PERS) as an employee of City and entitlement to any contribution to be paid by City for 
employer contributions and/or employee contributions for PERS benefits. 

6.2 Consultant No Agent. Except as City may specify in writing, Consultant shall have no 
authority, express or implied, to act on behalf of City in any capacity whatsoever as an 
agent. Consultant shall have no authority, express or implied, pursuant to this Agreement 
to bind City to any obligation whatsoever. · 

Section 7. LEGAL REQUIREMENTS. 

7 .1 Governing Law. The laws of the State of California shall govern this Agreement. 

7.2 Compliance with Applicable .Laws. Consultant and any subcontractors shall. comply with 
all laws applicable to the performance of the work hereunder. 

7.3 Other Governmental Regulations. To the extent that this Agreement may be funded by 
fiscal assistance from another governmental entity, Consultant and any subcontractors 
shall comply with all applicable rules and.regulations to which City is bound by the terms of 
such fiscal assistance program. 

7.4 Licenses and Permits. Consultant represents and warrants to City that Consultant and 
its employees, agents, and any subcontractors have all licenses, permits, qualifications, 
and approvals of whatsoever nature that is legally required to practice their respective 
professions. Consultant represents and warrants to City that Consultant and its 

Consulting Services Agreement between 11/20/2018 
City of Pinole and RSG · Page 8 of 23 

68 of 141



employees, agents, any subcontractors shall, at their sole cost and expense, keep in effect 
at all times during the term of this Agreement any licenses, permits, and approvals that are 
legally required to practice their respective professions. In addition to the foregoing, 
Consultant and any subcontractors shall obtain and maintain during the term of this 
Agreement valid Business Licenses from City. · 

7.5 Pinole Business License. Consultant shall obtain a City of Pinole business license 
according to the terms of Title 5 of the City of Pinole Municipal Code and deliver to City 
proof of such business license prior to beginning work under this Agreement. Work under 
this Agreement cannot begin until the City receives proof that Consultant has obtained a 
City of Pinole business license. 

7.6 Nondiscrimination and Equal Opportunity. Consultant shall not discriminate, on the 
basis of a person's race, religion, color, national origin, age, physical or mental handicap or 
disability, medical condition, marital status, sex, or sexual orientation, against any 
employee, applicant for employm~nt, subcontractor, bidder for a subcontract, or participant 
in, recipient of, or applic~nt for any services or programs provided by Consultant under this 
Agreement. Consultant shall comply with all applicable federal, state, and local laws, 
policies, rules, and requirements related to equal opportunity and nondiscrimination in 
employment, contracting, and the provision of any services that are the subject of this 
Agreement, including but not limited to the satisfaction of any positive obligations required 
of Consultant thereby. · · · 

Consultant shall include the provisions of this Subsection in any subcontract approved by 
the Contract Administrator or this Agreement. · 

Section 8. TERMINATION AND MODIFICATION. 

8.1 ·Termination. City may cancel this Agreement at any time and without cause upon written 
notification to Consultant · · · 

In the event of termination, Consultant shall be entitled to compensation for services 
performed to the effective date of termination; City, however, may condition payment of· 
such compensation upon Consultant delivering to City any or all documents, photographs, 
computer software, video and audio tapes, and other materials provided to Consultant or 
prepared by or for Consultant or the City in connection with this Agreement. 

8.2 Extension. City may, in its sole and exclusive discretion, extend the end date of this 
Agreement beyond that provided for in Subsection 1.1. Any such extension shall be 

· specified in writing by the City. Consultant understands and agrees that if City issues such 
an extension, City shall have no obligation to provide Consultant with. compensation 
beyond the maximum amount provided for in this Agreement. Similarly, unless authorized 
by the City, City shall have no obligation to reimburse Consultant for any otherwise 
reimbursable expenses incurred during the extension period. 

Consulting Services Agreement between 11/20/2018 
City of Pinole and RSG · Page 9 of 23 

69 of 141



8.3 Amendments. The parties may amend this Agreement only by a writing signed by all the 
parties. · · 

8.4 Assignment and Subcontracting. City and Consultant recognize and agree that this 
Agreement contemplates personal performance by Consultant and is based upon a 
determination of . Consultant's unique professional competence, experience, · and 
specialized professional knowledge. Moreover, a substantial inducement to City for 
entering into . this Agreement was and is -the personal reputation and competence of _ 
Consultant. Consultant may not assign this Agreement or any interest therein without the 
prior written approval of the City. Consultant shall not subcontract any portion of the 
performance contemplated and provided for herein, other than to the subcontractors noted 
in the 'proposal, without prior written approval of the City. 

8.5 Survival. All obligations arising prior to the termination of this Agreement and all 
provisions of this Agreement allocating liability between· City and Consultant shall survive 
the termination of this Agreement. 

8.6 Options upon Breach by Consultant. If Consultant materially breaches any of the terms 
of this Agreement, City's remedies shall included, but not be limited to, the following: 

Section 9. 

9.1 

8.6.1 Immediately terminate the Agreement; 

8.6.2 Retain the plans, specifications, drawings, reports, design documents, and any 
other work product prepared by Consultant pursuant to this Agreement; 

· 8.6.3 Retain a different consultant to complete the work described in· Exhibit A not 
finished by Consultant; or 

8.6.4 Charge Consultant the difference between the costs to complete the work 
described in Exhibit A that is unfinished at the time of breach and the amount that 
City would have paid Consultant pursuant. to -Section -2 if Consultant had 
completed the work. -

KEEPING AND STATUS OF RECORDS. 

Records Created as Part of Consultant's Performance. All reports, ·data, maps; 
models, charts, studies, surveys, photographs, memoranda, plans, studies, specifications, 
records, files, or any other documents or materials, in electronic or any other form, that 
Consultant prepares or obtains pursuant to this Agreement and that relate to the matters 
covered hereunder shall be the property of the City .. Consultant hereby agrees to deliver 
those documents to the City upon termination of the Agreement. It is understood and 
agreed that the documents· and other materials, including but not limited to those described 
above, prepared pursuant to this Agreement are prepared specifically for the City and are 
not necessarily suitable for any future or other use. City and Consultant agree that, until 
final approval by City, all data, plans, specifications, reports and other documents are 

Consulting Services Agreement between 11/20/2018 
City of Pinole and RSG Page 10 of 23 

70 of 141



confidential and will not be released to third parties without prior written consent of both 
parties. · · 

9.2 Consultant's Books and Records. Consultant shall maintain any and all ledgers, books 
of account, . invoices, vouchers, canceled checks, and other records or documents 
evidencing or relating to charges for.services or expenditures and disbursements charged 
to the City under this Agreement for a minimum of three (3) years, orfor any longer period 
required by law, from the date of final payment to the Consultant to this Agreement. 

9.3 Inspection and Audit of Records. Any records or documents that Section 9.2 of this 
Agreement requires Consultant to maintain shall be made available for inspection, ·audit, · 
and/or copying at any time during regular business hours, upon oral or written request of 
the City. Under California Government Code Section 8546.7, if the amount of public funds 
expended under this Agreement exceeds TEN THOUSAND DOLLARS ($10,000.00), the 
Agreement shall be· subject to the examination and audit of the State Auditor, . at the 
request of City or as ·part of any audit of the City, for a period of three (3) years after final 
payment under the Agreement. ·· 

Section 10 MISCELLANEOUS PROVISIONS. 

10.1 Attorneys' Fees. If a party to this Agreement brings any action, including an action for 
declaratory relief, to enforce or interpret the provision of this Agreement, the prevailing 
party shall be entitled to reasonable attorneys' fees in addition to any other relief to which 
that party may be entitled. The court may set such fees in the same action or in a 
separate action brought for that purpose. · 

10.2 Venue. · In the event that either party brings any action against the other under this 
Agreement, the parties agree that trial of such action shall be vested exclusively in the 
state courts of California in the County of Contra Costa or in the United States District 
Court for the Northern District of California. · · 

10.3 Severability. If a court of competent jurisdiction finds or rules that any provision of this 
Agreement is invalid, void, or unenforceable, the provisions of this Agreement not so 
adjudged shall remain in full force and effect. The invalidity in whole or in part of any 
provision of this Agreement shall not void or affect the validity of any other provision of this 
Agreement. 

10.4 No Implied Waiver of Breach. The waiver of any breach of a specific provision of this 
Agreement does not constitute a waiver of any other breach of that term or any other term 
of this Agreement. 

10.5 Successors and Assigns. The provisions of this Agreement shall inure to the benefit of 
and shall apply to and bind the successors and assigns of the parties. 

Consulting Services Agreement between 11/20/2018 
City of Pinole and RSG Page 11 of 23 

71 of 141



10.6 Use of Recycled Products. Consultant shall endeavor to prepare and submit all reports, 
written studies and other printed material on recycled paper to the extent it is available at 
equal or less cost than virgin paper. 

10.7 Conflict of Interest. Consultant may serve other clients, but none whose activities within 
the corporate limits of City or whose business, regardless of location, would place 
Consultant in a "conmct of interest," as that term is defined in the Political Reform Act; 
codified at California Government Code Section 81000 et seq. 

Consultant shall not employ any City official in the work performed pursuant to this 
Agreement. No officer or employee of City shall have any financial interest in this 
Agreement that would violate California Government Code Sections 1090 et seq. 

Consultant hereby warrants that it is not now, nor has it been in the previous twelve (12) 
months, an employee, agent, appointee, or official of the City. If Consultant was an 
employee, agent, appointee, or official of the City in the previous twelve months, 
Consultant . warrants that it did not participate in any manner in the forming of this 
Agreement. Consultant understands that, if this Agreement is made in violation of 
Government Code §1090 et.seq., the entire Agreement is void and Consultant will not be 
entitled to any compensation for services performed pursuant to this Agreement, including 
reimbursement of expenses, and Consultant will be required to reimburse the City for any 
sums paid to the Consultant. Consultant understands that, in addition to the foregoing, it 
may be subject to criminal prosecution for a violation of Government Code § 1090 and, if .· 
applicable, will be disqualified from holding public office in the State of California. 

Consultant will comply with all conflict of interest laws and regulations including, without 
limitation, Citts Conflict of Interest Code (on file in the City Clerk's Office).' It is incumbent 
upon the Consultant or Consultant's firm to notify the City pursuant to section 10.10 
Notices of any staff changes relating to this Agreement. 

a. In accomplishing the scope of services of this Agreement, all officers, employees 
and/or agents of Consultant(s), unless as indicated in Subsection b., will be 
performing a very limited and closely supervised function, and, therefore, are unlikely 

·to have a conflict of interest arise. No disclosures are required for any officers; 
employees, and/or agents of Consultant, except as indicated in Subsection b. 

Initialed by City Attorneis Office 

b. In accomplishing the scope of services of this Agreement, Consultant(s) will be 
performing a specialized or general service for the City, and there. is substantial 
likelihood that the Consultant's work product will be presented, either written or orally, 

Consulting Services Agreement between 11/20/2018 
City of Pinole and RSG. Page 12 of 23 

72 of 141



for the purpose of influencing a governmental decision. As a result,· the following 
Consultant(s) shall be subject to the Disclosure Category "1-5" of the City's Conflict of 
Interest Code: 

10.8 Solicitation. Consultant agrees not to solicit business at any meeting, focus group, or 
interview related to this Agreement, either orally or through any written materials. 

10.9 Contract Administration. This Agreement. shall be administered by the City Engineer, 
Tamara Miller, who shall act as the City's representative. All correspondence shall be· 
directed to or through City Engineer, Tamara Miller or his or her designee. 

10.10 Notices. Any written notice to Consultant shall be sent to: 

RSG 
TARA MATTHEWS, PRINCIPAL 
17872 GILETE AVE., STE. 350 
IRVINE, CA 92614 

Any written notice to City shall be s~nt to: 

Tamara Miller, City Engineer 
Department of Development Services 
2131 Pear Street 
Pinole, CA 94564 

10.11 Professional Seal. Where applicable in the determination of the City, the first page of a 
technical report, first page of design specifications, and each page of construction 
drawings shall. be stamped/sealed and signed by the licensed professional responsible for 
the report/design preparation. 

10.12 Integration; Incorporation. This Agreement, including all the exhibits attached hereto, 
represents ·. the entire and integrated agreement between City and. Consultant and 
supersedes all prior negotiations, representations, or agreements, either written or oral. All 
exhibits attached hereto are incorporated by reference herein. · 

10.13 Counterparts. This Agreement may be executed in multiple counterparts, each of which 
shall be·an original and all of which together shall constitute one ~greement. 

Consulting Services Agreement between 
City of Pinole and RSG · Page 13 of 23 · 

11/20/2018 

73 of 141



The Parties have executed this Agreement as of the Effective Date. 

CITY OF PINOLE. CONSULTANT 

~~.~·ro~ 
TARA MATTHEWS; PRINCIPAL 

DATE: 
Consultant's City of Pinole Business 

Licen.se#: \'B- 08\lo'\ · 

Consulting Services Agreement between 11/20/2018 
City of Pinole and RSG. Page 14 of 23 

74 of 141



EXHIBIT A 
SCOPE OF SERVICES & BUDGET 

Consulting Services Agreement between 11/20/2018 
City of Pinole and RSG Page 15 of 23 

75 of 141



4 

Scope of Work 

With the above in mind, we would provide the following services: 

1. Staff Kick-Off and Marketing Strategy.  Meet with City staff to visit sites, review the

property disposition process and applicable laws, and identify goals.  Discuss the pros and

cons of marketing properties as surplus land or not.  Consider potential tax revenues and

community benefits (i.e. jobs and housing) from viable uses, and explore the feasibility or

rezoning for alternative uses to develop a marketing strategy.  (1 in-person or virtual meeting)

2. City Council Goal Setting.  Meet with City Council to review the process, goals, and

expectations. (1 in-person or virtual meeting)

3. Compile Site Information.  Compile information typically sought by prospective buyers to

encourage timely and multiple offers, including but not limited to: environmental assessment

reports, preliminary title reports, appraisals, zoning information, etc.

Based on the City’s interest, coordinate and obtain quotes for third-party services to obtain

preliminary title reports, Phase I environmental studies, and appraisals.  These documents

provide transparency on potential site issues to buyers.

4. Property Marketing and Offering Memorandum.  Draft a detailed offering memorandum

(“OM”) that markets all four properties.   The OM will solicit Letters of Interest detailing buyer

offers, proposed uses, and contingencies.

Post a digital copy of the OM on CoStar and LoopNet, as well as the City website.  Circulate

the OM to targeted key owner-users and developers who pursue local projects with uses that

match those desired for each property, as well as RSG’s developer inventory from other

property disposition projects throughout California.  RSG suggests at least a 90-day listing

period that gives buyers sufficient time to consider each property given evolving market

conditions.

Post marketing signage on each property with relevant information (zoning, etc.) and RSG

contact information.  RSG’s fee proposal includes reimbursable costs for listing fees and

signage.

5. Host Site Visits/Provide Access.  Provide access to and host site visits to prospective

buyers.  This may be in-person or virtual based on social distancing measures to ensure the

safety of our staff.  Weekly viewing sessions will be held at a set time, which will keep costs

down for the City in comparison to giving multiple tours a week.  Weekly sessions will be

cancelled if no one signs up that week, and RSG will only bill for time spent on the project.

6. Coordination and Management.  Respond to developer inquiries within one business day.

Provide City staff weekly updates of interest and offers during solicitation process.

EXHIBIT A

76 of 141



Andrew Murray and Hector De La Rosa 
CITY OF PINOLE 
May 13, 2020 

5 

7. Offer Summary and Review.  Prepare a summary of all offers received at the end of the

listing period and review with City staff.  Meet with City Council in closed session to review

offers as appropriate.  (2 in-person or virtual meetings)

8. Buyer Negotiations and Counters. Draft counter-offers, as may be appropriate, and

negotiate with buyers.

9. Coordinate and Review Agreements with City Attorney.  Coordinate terms and conditions

with City Attorney, who will be responsible for drafting Purchase and Sale Agreements and/or

other appropriate agreements with buyers.

10. Present Agreements for City Council Approval.  Present Purchase and Sale and other

applicable agreements to City Council for approval.  Includes staff reports and resolutions.

(1 in-person or virtual meeting).

It is our understanding that City staff will coordinate escrow to close on the properties.  

Fee Proposal 

RSG estimates a total budget of $65,000, invoiced and payable monthly based on a time and 

materials.  The following table estimates the budget by task: 

The fees reflected here would be charged on a not-to-exceed basis, billable monthly based on 
completed work.  Our contract fee schedule is set forth as follows: 

Principal/Director $  235 
Senior Associate 180 
Analyst 125 

Reimbursable Expenses Cost plus 10% 

Consulting Services & Hours Principal Sr. Assoc. Analyst Subtotal Reimb. Total

235$       180$          125$     

Scope of Services

1   Kickoff Meeting & Marketing Strategy 5             20              10         6,025$   -            6,025$   

2   City Council Goal Setting 5             10              5           3,600$   -            3,600$   

3   Compile Site Info 1             5 5           1,760$   -            1,760$   

4   Property Marketing and OM 4             20              40         9,540$   2,500     12,040$ 

5   Host Site Visits/ Provide Access -              72              -            12,960$ -            12,960$ 

6   Coordination & Management 8             25              10         7,630$   -            7,630$   

7   Offer Summary & Review 8             16              20         7,260$   -            7,260$   

8   Buyer Negotiations/Counters 8             12              -            4,040$   -            4,040$   

9   Coordinate/Review Agrmts w/ City Att. 4             12              -            3,100$   -            3,100$   

10 City Council Approval 8             10              16         5,680$   -            5,680$   

Total 51           202            106       61,595$ 2,500$   64,095$ 

77 of 141



   

 

     CITY COUNCIL 

    REPORT   7G  

 
DATE: MAY 19, 2020    
 
TO:  MAYOR AND COUNCIL MEMBERS 
 
FROM: TAMARA MILLER, DEVELOPMENT SERVICES DIRECTOR / CITY 

ENGINEER 
 
SUBJECT: ADOPTION OF SEWER SYSTEM MANAGEMENT PLAN 2020 

 
RECOMMENDATION 
 
City staff recommends that the City Council adopt a resolution adopting the Sewer 
System Management Plan 2020 (SSMP 2020). 
 
BACKGROUND 
 
The City of Pinole owns and operates a sewer collection system, which is comprised of a 
network of sewer pipes, manholes, and pump stations.  Under State regulations, the City 
Council must adopt a Sewer System Management Plan (SSMP). The SSMP outlines the 
activities that the City takes to effectively manage its wastewater collection system, and 
includes the following elements:  

1. Organization of the collection system’s personnel, including the chain of command 
and communications; 

2. Legal authority for permitting flows into the system, inflow/infiltration control as well 
as enforcement of proper design, installation and testing standards, and inspection 
requirements for new and rehabilitated sewers; 

3. Operations and maintenance activities to maintain the wastewater collection 
system; 

4. Design and performance provisions; 
5. Overflow emergency response plan; 
6. Fats, oils and grease (FOG) control program; 
7. System evaluation and capacity assurance program; 
8. Monitoring, measurement and modifications plans for SSMP program 

effectiveness; 
9. Periodic internal SSMP audits; and 
10. Communications program. 

The City last adopted a SSMP in 2012. The State requires that the plan be revisited, on 
a five year cycle, or more frequently if warranted.  

 

 

78 of 141



City Council Report, 7G 
May 19, 2020  2 

 

 

REVIEW & ANALYSIS 
 
The SSMP has been updated to reflect changes in personnel and emergency contact 
information. The SSMP has also been updated to include the Sanitary Sewer Overflow 
(SSO) Mitigation Measure put into practice to address a recurring issue within the 
collection system. Upon adoption of the plan, the document will be forwarded to the State 
of California. 
 
In February 2019, we experienced a significant rain event that resulted in an overflow that 
prompted the development of the mitigation measures now included in the SSMP. This 
overflow has illustrated that we have a wet weather capacity issue that needs to be 
remedied with an improvement to the collection system; either by upsizing the pipe, 
adequately mitigating upstream inflow and infiltration, and, or a combination of all, 
installing interconnects with the collection network. 
 
FISCAL IMPACT 
 
There is no fiscal impact of adopting this SSMP. The SSMP reflects the activities that the 
City is already undertaking to operate the sewer collection system. 
 

 

ATTACHMENTS 
 
A Resolution 
B  Sewer System Management Plan (2020) 
  
 

79 of 141



ATTACHMENT A 

RESOLUTION NO. 2020-___ 

RESOLUTION OF THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF PINOLE, COUNTY OF 
CONTRA COSTA, STATE OF CALIFORNIA, 

ADOPTING THE SEWER SYSTEM MANAGEMENT PLAN (SSMP) 

WHEREAS, the State Water Resources Control Board requires local agencies 
that own and operate sewer collection to prepare a Sewer System Management Plan 
(SSMP); and 

WHEREAS, the State Water Resources Control Board requires that, an SSMP 
must be adopted by the local agency’s governing board; and 

WHEREAS, the City of Pinole has an existing SSMP which was adopted by the 
City Council on April 17, 2012; and 

WHEREAS, the State Water Resources Control Board requires local agencies to 
review and update their SSMP as warranted to reflect changes in operation of the 
collection system; and 

WHEREAS, City staff has revised the City’s SSMP to reflect changes in staff 
responsibilities and emergency contact information, as well as to add documentation of 
the sanitary sewer overflow mitigation measures put into practice in early 2019. 

NOW THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED that the Pinole City Council does hereby 
adopt the City’s revised 2020 SSMP.  

BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED that the City Council authorizes the City Engineer 
to make minor modifications to the SSMP as requested by the State Water Resources 
Control Board.  

PASSED AND ADOPTED at a regular meeting of the Pinole City Council held on 
the 19th day of May 2020 by the following vote: 

AYES:  COUNCILMEMBERS: 

NOES: COUNCILMEMBERS: 

ABSENT: COUNCILMEMBERS: 

ABSTAIN: COUNCILMEMBERS: 

I hereby certify that the foregoing resolution was introduced, passed, and adopted on 
the 19th day of May, 2020. 

___________________________
Heather Iopu, CMC 
City Clerk 

80 of 141



CITY OF PINOLE 

SEWER SYSTEM MANAGEMENT PLAN 

SANITARY SEWER OVERFLOW (SSO) 
RESPONSE PLAN  

AND 

PUMPING AND COLLECTION SYSTEM 
RELIABILITY IMPROVEMENT  
AND MANAGEMENT PLAN 

Revised April 2020

ATTACHMENT B

81 of 141



2 

Table of Contents 
 
1. SSMP Goals                                                                                                                                        2                                                                                                                        

 
2. Organization Chart 3 

 
3. Introduction 4 
 
4. Procedures 5 
 

A. What kind of sanitary sewer overflows needs to be reported? 5 
B. To whom and when should a Sanitary Sewer Overflow be reported to? 6 
C. Field Activities 7 
D. Relieving Cause of the Sanitary Sewer Overflow 7 
E. Sanitary Sewer Overflow Containment and Recovery 7 
F. Clean up and Disinfection 7 
G. Sign Posting and Barricading 7 
H. Sewer Backup Inside a Building (SOP) 8 
 

5. Sanitary Sewer Overflow Calculation Method 9 
Reference Sheet for Sewer Spills 10 

 
4. Lift Station Trouble Shooting Procedures 11 
  

A. Hazel Street Station 11 
B. San Pablo Avenue Lift Station 12 

 
5. Cause/Response 13 
 
6. Pumping/Collection System/Reliability Improvement and Annual Management Plan 14 

(Mission Statement Plans in the Works) 
 

7. Phone Listings 16 
 

A. Personnel 16 
B. Homeowners Association 18 
C. Contractors/Vendors 21 
 

8. Warning Posters & Forms 23 
 
 
 
 

82 of 141



1 

SSMP GOALS 

 
 
It has been a long-standing practice in the City of Pinole to provide the public with a sewer 
collection system that is effective, well maintained, and will serve their needs for future years. 
We have taken a proactive approach in many phases of maintenance, construction, 
rehabilitation, and planning to ensure that we meet our ultimate goal of “Keeping the sewage 
underground”, and flowing unobstructed to our treatment plant facility. 
 
Our goals for the upcoming year(s) is to continue our preventive maintenance schedule along 
with instituting a Master Plan Study, to better aid us in our efforts to prioritize our rehabilitation, 
I&I impact, and maintenance needs. 
 
Listed below are the practices we will continue with, as well as the new goals we will be 
implementing: 
 

- Hydro-flush entire system every four years 
- Service “Hot Spots” on a regular schedule 
- Perform regular operational checks on Lift stations. Upgrade and repair as needed. 
- CCTV Inspection  
- Smoke Testing 
- Participation in the CWEA certification program 
- Regular training in collection system related fields 
- Rehab – budgeted from $200k - $500k annually for lining, MH repair, general repairs 
- SSMP Master Plan Study—Completed June 2008 
- Prioritize maintenance and rehab efforts in conjunction with Study 

 
 

In the course of all of our maintenance functions, crews are instructed to lookout for I&I 
sources as well as needed repairs. Field crews note any of these deficiencies and turn them in 
to be logged on the appropriate repair, rehab, or maintenance list. 

 
  

83 of 141



2 

 
 

CITY OF PINOLE SSMP

ORGANIZATION CHART

CITY CLERK

INSPECTOR

FIELD CREW

COLLECTION SYSTEMS SUPERVISOR

PUBLIC WORKS MANAGER

PUBLIC WORKS DIRECTOR

CITY MANAGER

CITY COUNCIL

84 of 141



3 

INTRODUCTION 
 
 
The following sanitary sewer overflow scenarios were developed to address public health and 
regulatory concerns as the City of Pinole desires to keep the city clean, healthy, and in 
compliance with sanitary sewer overflow laws. 
 
This document will be dynamic in nature and will change and be updated annually, or as 
necessary, to reflect new changes in the law, personnel, new public health information, 
unforeseen sanitary sewer overflow scenarios and changes in clean-up containment 
technologies.  It is intended to primarily address emergency sanitary sewer overflows that have 
public health significance.  It is designed to protect public health and the environment by 
applying a process that will address a broad range of sanitary sewer overflow scenarios. 
 
The objectives are to prevent the discharge of raw or partially treated sewage to any waters and 
to protect public health by preventing backup of sewage and subsequent discharge to 
basements, streets, and other public and private property. 

 

85 of 141



4 

PROCEDURES  
Flow Chart for Deciding How to Report an SSO 

 
A. What kind of sanitary sewer overflows need to be reported: 
 

Sanitary Sewer Overflow Reporting Process 
 
 
      No 
               
  
       Yes 
 
  
    Yes   Yes 
         
        No 
 
 
      Yes 
 
 
      
       No 
 
 
      Yes 
 
       No 
 
 
      Yes 
 
 
       No 
  
       
 
      Yes 
 
        No 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

             Start 

Is the SSO equal to or 
greater than 100 gals? 

Is the SSO equal to or 
greater than 1000 gals? 

Did the SSO 
imminently and 
substantially endanger 
human health? 

Within 24 hours, report 
the SSO to the Regional 
Water Board and OES. 

Did the SSO cause a 
fish kill? 

Was the SSO caused by a problem in 
or with a sewer line owned by the 
sewer system authority? 

Was the SSO caused by a problem 
in a service lateral owned by the 
sewer system authority? 

Optional 
Report this SSO from a private property – caused by a private 
property owner – by logging on through the Public Domain of 
the web-based SSO reporting system.  Also, if desired (or instead 
of using the web), telephone the Regional Board with the 
information.  

Within 10 days, report the SSO 
to the Regional Board using the 
web-based eReporting System. 

Include the SSO in the annual 
report to the Board due each 
March 15th. 

86 of 141



5 

 
 
 
B. To whom and when should a sanitary sewer overflow be reported to: 
 

1. Office of Emergency Services (OES) – Report ASAP. 
 

The Office of Emergency Services is responsible for maintaining and 
implementing the State of California’s Emergency Plan.  The OES must be 
notified immediately following any sanitary sewer overflow that enters or 
will probably enter waters of the State.  The OES operator will give you a 
sanitary sewer overflow report number and will notify other state agencies 
of the sanitary sewer overflow.  Their notification list includes California 
Department of Fish and Game, California Highway Patrol, California 
Department of Health Services, Caltrans, US Environmental Protection 
Agency, and US Fish and Wildlife Service. 

 
OES Telephone:    (800) 852-7550 or (916) 845-8911 
OES Fax for follow up only (916) 262-1677 

 
2. San Francisco Bay Region Water Quality Control Board (RWQCB) or Local RWQCB 

Report within 24 hours for spills greater than 1,000 gallons. 
Report within (10) Business days for spills greater than 100 gallons. 

 
The RWQCB is part of the California Water Resources Control Board 
(CWRCB) and it is charged with the protection of all state water resources 
and with protecting the beneficial uses of those resources.  This includes 
surface waters, ground waters, salt and fresh waters.  The CWRCB has the 
legal authority to abate, through cease and desist orders, any situation that 
impact or threatens to impact the waters of the State.  This includes 
regulating all sanitary sewer overflows to state waters, pursuing clean up of 
sanitary sewer overflows, and assuring proper disposal of pollutants.  The 
agency has board powers to enforce standards and prohibitions to protect 
the waters of state.  Damage assessment reports or remedial action plans 
may be required of the discharger.  They have extensive expertise in the area 
of the impact of sanitary sewer overflows on the environment and the ability 
to conduct monitoring when required. 

 
RWQCB Telephone:  (510) 622-2300   (8 a.m. – 5 p.m.) 

(510) 286-1255 – Voicemail) 
Fax: (510) 622-2460 

 
 

SSO eReporting:    Log on to:  
https://www.r2esmr.net/sso_login2.asp 

Username:  Pinole, Password:  cHAksX82 
 

87 of 141

https://www.r2esmr.net/sso_login2.asp


6 

In the event that eReporting is not an option, report via phone at (510) 
622-2369 

 
3. Contra Costa County Health Department (925) 692-2500…925-383-4945 
 
4. Urban Creeks Council of California– (510) 540-6669/Fax (510) 848-2219 

 
5. Local Agencies and Individuals:  
 

a. Contact as situation dictates. 
b. Report as soon as possible. 

 
Fire Department  (510) 724-8970:   Protect Public Health 
Police Department  (510) 724-8950:   Road Block, Traffic Control, 
etc. 
Public Works  (510) 724-9010  Close areas such as beach, 

parks,       fishing pier, etc. 
Water District           (510) 835-3000 Impact on drinking water 

storage or supply. 
 
Contact any local residents who may be impacted. 

  Contact Supervisor, Manager or Director, as needed. 
 
C. Field Activities: 
 

1. Typical Respondent’s role:  (Bring Emergency Response Packet on all Calls.) 
 

a. Protect public health, environment and property from sanitary sewer 
overflows and restore area to normalcy as soon as possible. 

b. Establish perimeters and control zones with cones, barricades, vehicles or 
terrain. 

c. Promptly notify agency communication centers of preliminary sanitary 
sewer overflow information and potential impacts. 

d. Contain sanitary sewer overflow to the maximum extent possible.  Every 
effort must be made to prevent the sanitary sewer overflow into surface 
waters. 

e. Fill out SSO form. 
 
D. Relieving Cause of the Sanitary Sewer Overflow: 
 

1. Relieve the stoppage as soon as possible by use of sewer rodder, hydro-jet or 
snake (flex). 

2. Refer to and follow all safety regulations. 
3. Contain the sewage discharged to the maximum extent possible. 
4. If sanitary sewer overflow enters the creek, use screen to collect solids. 
5. Any sanitary sewer overflows over 10,000 gallons; the discharger should collect 

receiving water samples up stream and down stream of the sanitary sewer 

88 of 141



7 

overflow and have them analyzed for total and fecal coliform.  Soil samples may 
be required in the affected area. 

 
E. Sanitary Sewer Overflow Containment and Recovery: 
 

1. Install air plugs on storm drains whenever appropriate to contain the sanitary 
sewer overflow. 

2. Divert sanitary sewer overflow by building a small berm to change direction of 
flow to sewer. 

3. Divert sanitary sewer overflow by pumping around overflow and return to sewer. 
4. Contain sanitary sewer overflow by allowing it to collect in a naturally low area or 

pump to a storage tank and recover collected sewage as soon as possible. 
5. Dike/dam or sand bag sanitary sewer overflow by building a dirt berm to collect 

the overflow. 
 
F. Clean Up and Disinfection 
 

1. Flush area with tertiary water.  The amount of flush water should be at least three 
times the quantity of the sanitary sewer overflow. 

2. If chlorinated water is used for disinfection, the water should be contained and 
returned to sewer. 

 
G. Sign Posting and Barricading 
 

1. Post “CONTAMINATED WATER” signs and block the contaminated area with 
“yellow caution” tape barricades.  Do not remove these until the lab tests are 
cleared. 

 
H. Sewer Backup Involving Private Property  

Standard Operating Procedures (SOP) 
Refer to Emergency Response Plan (ERP) for situational procedures. 

 
Emergency Response material should include: 
Cell Phone with Camera, Emergency Response Plan with blank forms, EBRICS Radio 
 
i) FIRST: Determine if stoppage is in the City main line.  Run line with Hydro or Rodder 

to ensure partial blockage doesn’t exist. 
 

(1) IF NO: Inform customer that the problem is in their private line and that a 
plumber of their choosing should be contacted to fix the problem. Inform Code 
Enforcement in case follow up by code enforcement is necessary to insure the 
property is restored to a sanitary operating condition.  END 

 
(2) IF YES (in our system):  

Relieve the blockage and backup, call a City staff Supervisor or Manager and then 
proceed to ask customer if they desire cleanup.   
 

89 of 141



8 

(a) If the customer desires clean up support from the City, call E.V. Link @ 1-800-
413-2999 or 707-479-1375 (Bruce Burnett), or current primary service 
provider.  Request a cleanup crew be dispatched.  Ask for ETA and relay 
information to customer.  If for some reason the primary service provider 
cannot be reached, refer to ERP for alternate restoration companies.  DO NOT 
ATTEMPT TO CLEAN SEWAGE BACKUP INSIDE THE BUILDING ALONE 
WITHOUT PRROR AUTHORIZATION FROM MANAGER.  

 
(b) If the customer does not want clean up support, request that the customer 

sign a “Refusal of Service” form.  If customer does not wish to sign this form, 
fill out form and note that they chose note to sign. 

 
1. Inform customer to: 

a. Keep pets and inhabitants from walking through spill. 
b. Put towels or some form of diversion to keep the spill from 

reaching floor vents and  to limit spreading. 
c. Start making a list of items and areas affected by the spill. 
d. Contact their insurance company. 

2. Take pictures of affected areas and items. 
3. If relocation to a motel is requested, call from the list in the ERP to 

accommodate.  Inform the customer that you can only authorize one 
nights stay or until the next business day when a City of Pinole 
representative or a representative from the City’s insurance company 
would contact them. 

4. Do not volunteer or disown City liability.  If asked about liability, inform 
them that the City’s insurance representative would determine it. 

5. Always maintain a professional and courteous approach to these 
matters.  Put yourself in the customers’ position and understand that 
this can be a very stressful and aggravating situation.  The customer, 
understandably, may not be very pleasant. 

6. DO NOT WALK AWAY FROM AN UNRESOLVED SANITARY SEWER 
OVERFLOW (SSO) THAT HAS THE POTENTIAL FOR IMMEDIATE IMPACT 
ON PUBLIC HEALTH, SAFETY, OR ENVIRONMENTAL DANGER.  

7. If there is a discrepancy as to responsibility, and/or no other timely 
solution to resolving an SSO, we will make every effort to fix the 
problem.  All financial and legal responsibilities will be left to 
determine at a future time.  

8. For containment and clean up of outdoor spills, refer to ERP. 
9. In the event that the customer is without service and chooses not to 

relocate, we have (2) portable chemical toilets as an option for a short-
term solution. 

 
  

90 of 141



9 

COLLECTION SYSTEM DEPARTMENT 
SANITARY SEWER OVERFLOW 

 CALCULATION METHOD 
 
To calculate the amount of gallons in a sanitary sewer overflow, you must determine the volume 
of the sanitary sewer overflow.  If it is a rectangular contained area: 
 
  V=L x W x D x 7.48 = Gallons 
 
Example:   A spill 100’ x 100’ x 6” 
  100’ x 100’ x .5’ x 7.48 = 37,400/gallons 
 
If you are dealing with a sanitary sewer overflow that has been running into a storm drain, you 
must estimate the gallons by the amount of time of the overflow x the number of connections on 
the receiving line (200 gallons per household per 24 hours). 
 
Example: If you have a line with 6 houses on it and it has been overflowing for 24 hours: 
   
    6 x 200/gallons = 1,200/gallons 
 
Example: If you have 60 houses on a line that has been overflowing for 1 hour: 
 
    60 x 200/gallons divided by 24 hours = 500/gallons 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

  

EX. 

 

   100 FEET   

 

           
           

   100 Feet 

 

 
 

           V. = 100’ x 100’ x .5’ x 7.48 

                = 37,400 gallons 

EX. 

 

                            100 FEET     

 

 

 

 

  100 Feet 

       

 

 

             V. = 100’ x 100’ x .5’ x .7 

                  = 26,180 gallons 

Example:  6 houses, overflowing for 12 hours at 240 gallons per house 
 

            240 gallons, 24 hour x 6 households 

                   = 720 gallons per 12 hours 

91 of 141



10 

  
  

92 of 141



11 

LIFT STATION TROUBLE SHOOTING PROCEDURES 
 
HAZEL STREET STATION (510) 724-9152 
 

A. Pump Not Pumping 
1. Trouble shoot control panel and level controller. 
2. Put good pump on lead; shut off power to lock out down pump. 
3. Visually inspect down pump – check power. 
4. Back flush if possible – 

a. If down pump starts, open check valve, hold open. 
b. Alternate back flush working pump to relieve pressure on down pump and 

check valve. 
5. Close all inflow and outflow valves on down pump; drain pump with ball valve – 

pull inspection plate. 
6. Pull pump. 
7. Open inspection plate on check valve. 
8. If suction line is plugged before the valve, pump wet well down. 
9. When pump has been down for a good length of time (4 or more hours), back 

flush before starting. 
10. Bleed (air) before restarting. 

 
B. Both Pumps Running, But Not Pumping 

1. Trouble shoot control panel and level controller. 
2. Physically check wet well. 
3. Bleed Air 
4. Refer to “plugged pump” procedure. 

 
A. Pumps Not Running 

1. Check power at pole. 
2. Check breakers downstairs. 
3. Set up generator power. 

 
B. No Power At Pole 

1. Notify P.G.&E.  (800) 743-5000 
2. Visually inspect pole, lines and fuses. 
3. Set up generator power. 

 
C. Backup at Station or Nearby Manhole 

1. Make sure station is in working order (see A through D). 
2. Check up stream manholes for blockage. 
3. Unplug blockage. 
4. Clean up standing water and waste material. 

 
F. Forced Main Blockage 

1. Inspect manhole at end of forced main. 
2. Inspect street for sinkholes. 
3. Use gas pump for pumping above ground to gravity feed manhole (refer to 

diagrams on next page for pumping route) or to portable storage tank trailer. 

93 of 141



12 

 
 
SAN PABLO AVENUE LIFT STATION (510) 724-0522 
 
A. Back up at Station or Nearby Manhole 

1. Make sure station is in working order (See B through F). 
2. Check upstream manholes for blockage. 
3. Unplug blockage. 
4. Clean up standing water and waste material. 

 
B. Pump Not Pumping 

1. Trouble shoot control panel and level controller. 
2. Put good pump in lead, lock power out to down pump. 
3. Pump well down. 
4. Visually inspect pumps. 
5. Pull pump from well. 
6. Open pump housing, inspect and clean. 

 
C. Both Pumps Not Running 

1. Trouble shoot control panel and level controller. 
2. Check power at pole. 
3. Check motor operation. 

 
D. Pumps Running But Still Overflowing 

1. Trouble shoot control panel and level controller. 
2. Check force main manhole. 
3. Check up line (inflow) manholes. 
4. Check to see if pumps are plugged. 

 
E. Forced Main Broke or Plugged 

1. Bypass force main to Patrick Drive manhole or to San Pablo Avenue at Foster 
Freeze with portable submerging pump or 6” gas pump (refer to diagrams on next 
page for pumping route) or pump to portable storage tank trailer (Rain for Rent 
has 21,000 gallon storage tanks). 

 
F. Power Outage 

1. Set up generator power 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 

 
 

94 of 141



13 

CAUSE/RESPONSE 
 
A. Sewer Overflow – Manhole running over – can’t unplug blockage. 
 

1. Pump to nearest downstream manhole with submergible pump, hose and generator 
power or to portable storage tank trailer. 

 
B. Sink Hole Sewage Overflow 
 

1. Pump to nearest downstream manhole. 
2. Use storm drain system to route sewage to nearest sewer system access or to 

portable storage tank trailer. 
3. If sanitary sewer overflow enters creek, use screen to collect solids. 

 
C. Lateral Plugged in Street – Unable to Clean 
 

1. Divert overflow to nearest accessible clean out (if neighbors give permission). 
2. Divert overflow to nearest downstream manhole. 
3. Dig hole and use submergible pump if necessary. 
4. Clean up standing water and waste material. 
5. If sanitary sewer overflow enters creek, use screen to collect solids. 
6. Take samples upstream and downstream. 
 

D.       SSO Mitigation Plan for Pinon 
 

1. Watch CCCFlood Control Website for weather projections 
2. Deploy Rental Equipment to designated location  

a.          Pumps, hose, and tanks 
3. Enter into agreements with contract haulers 

a.          Place on standby for days of projected overflows 
4. Develop staff schedule to monitor equipment when I/I is predicted to be higher 

than system can handle. Confer with City Engineer for assistance with flow volume 
projections or WPCP Manager for Wet Weather Flow at treatment plant. 

a.          Oversee actual implementation of SSO Mitigation 
5. Clean and remove equipment at the end of the rainy season 

95 of 141



14 

E. PUMPING AND COLLECTION SYSTEM 
RELIABILITY IMPROVEMENT AND MANAGEMENT PLAN 
 

Annual Management Plan For Sewer Collection System 
 

1. Use available funding (request approximately $350,000 annually) for rehab 
projects to mitigate I&I and system integrity to include: 
a. Mainline replacement or lining 
b. Manhole lining or grout seal 
c. Pipe bursting to upgrade size and/or integrity of mainline 
d. Rerouting of lines 
e. Make immediate repairs as needed 
f. Lift station upgrades 

2. Bi-weekly operations checks on lift stations.  Scheduled maintenance and repairs 
as needed. 

3. Quarterly training on emergency by-pass pumping and generator power at lift 
stations. 

4. Preventive Maintenance to include: 
a. Flush entire system on an 18-month schedule 
b. Service “Hot Spots” bi-annually or as needed 
c. Service areas with mechanical rodder where needed 
d. Note faults in system for repairs 

5. Inspections to include: 
a. Smoke Testing 
b. Video inspections 
c. Note faults in system for repairs 

6. Annual maintenance on easement paths for access 
7. Incorporate all information of rehab into GIS 
8. Training to include: 

a. Various related seminars 
b. In-house training 
c. CWEA certification program available 

 
The City of Pinole is approximately five square miles with 46.5 miles of underground wastewater 
piping, which ranges from 6” to 30” in size. There are 1,492 manhole structures and the deepest 
manhole is 22 feet.  The cleaning equipment includes: 
 

1. (1) Hydro Machine 
2. (1) Rodding Machine 
3. (1) Hydro Vactor Machine 
4. (2) Electric Snakes (flexible) 
5. (1) Small and Mid-Size Camera Unit 
6. (1) Track Camera System 
7. (1) 2” Sump Pump 
8. (1) 6” Gas Driven Pump 
9. (1) 1.5 KV Diesel Trailer Mounted Generator 
10. (1) 115 Volt Recessed Impeller 132 GPM 

 

96 of 141



15 

 
Pumping Stations: 
 
Hazel Avenue Station – This dry-well station has two 20 H.P. motors at 1750 RPM, with a 
capability of 300 gallons per minute and a 6” x 1,000’ long forced main.  The force main is also 
plumbed for above ground pumping.  Block #50 Exempt (Rolling Blackouts)----WWCAP 334cf = 
2,500 gallons. 
 
San Pablo Avenue Station – This above ground control station has two 10 H.P. FLYGHT 
submerged motors with a capability of 500 gallons per minute and a 6” x 635’ long forced main.  
The force main is also plumbed for above ground pumping.  Block #10----WWCAP 367cf = 2,750 
gallons. 
 
 

97 of 141



16 

Confidential Employee Roster 
 

Public Works Cellular Phones 
 

 
Public Works Superintendent, Joe Bingaman  (510) 672-1053 
Public Works Sewer Division, Pat Bowie  (510) 418-6810 
Public Works, Streets/Parks, Rob Ouellette  (510) 418-6811 
Public Works Director, Tamara Miller  (510) 672-5670 
City Manager,  
 
Public Works/W.P.C.P.  Pager Numbers 
 
Public Works Primary Pager (510) 810-3860 
Public Works Secondary Pager (510) 810-3863 
Public Works Weekend Pager (510) 729-3685 
San Pablo Avenue Lift Station   (510) 724-0522 
Hazel Street Lift Station   (510) 724-9152 
WPCP After Hours Pager (510) 361-2108 
 
Employees By Department 
Public Works: 
 

    

Miller, Tamara    

Anderson, John    

Bingaman, Joe    

Bowie, Patrick    

Jones, Matt    

Castro, Faustino    
(Junior)          

   

Denis, Brian    

Bull, Nate    

Wilson, Tony    

Ouelette, Robert    

Jordon,    

Walker, Robert    

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

98 of 141



17 

City of Pinole 
Homeowners Associations 

January 2005 
 
Association 
Name 

Location Property Manager’s 
Name, Address, Phone, 
Contact 

President’s Name, Address, Phone 

Appian Way 
Townhomes 

Dalessi Lane Collins Management 
3220 Blume Drive, Ste. 
154 
Richmond, CA 94806 
(510) 262-1795 
Fax: (510) 262-1797 

Denise Witcher 
1828 Dalessi Lane 
Pinole, CA 94564 
(510) 222-2346 

Bayview Vista Lopes Lane & Court Bayview Vista HOA 
Board of Directors 
517 Lopes Ct., Pinole, CA 
94564 
(510) 724-2907 

Mario Falcao 
517 Lopes Court 
Pinole, CA 94564 
(510) 724-2907 

East Bluff Ridgecrest Rd.    (1361-1383) 
Marionola Way  (1200-1260) 
Tesoro Court       (1800-1890) 
Buckeye Court    (1501-1555) 

East Bluff HOA 
1251 Marionola Way 
Pinole, CA 94564 
(510) 724-6840 
Fax: (510) 724-1156 

East Bluff HOA 
Barbara Skidmore 
1251 Marionola Way 
Pinole, CA 94564 
(510) 724-6840 

East Bluff II Henry/Ridgecrest   (1300-1302) 
Lewis Lane 

Homeowners 
Association 

Bob Hennessey 
1302 Ridgecrest Road 
Pinole, CA 94564 
(510) 724-5844 

Harbor Cove Carlotta Circle 
Curry Place 

Collins Management 
Attn:  Paul Collins 
3220 Blume Drive, Ste. 
154 
Richmond, CA 94806 
(510) 262-1795 

 

Harbour 
Pointe I 

Wildrose Circle City Scape 
Attn:  Robert Simms 
3450 3

rd
 Street, Suite 1A 

San Francisco, CA 94124 
(415) 401-2053/Fax: 
(415) 487-9961 

Cynthia Singh 
388 Wildrose Circle 
Pinole, CA 94564 
(510) 741-1558 

Harbour 
Pointe II 

Dohrmann Lane  Roberta Kuhlman 
532 Dohrmann Lane 
Pinole, CA 94564 
(510) 724-7391 

On the Hill 
Townhomes 
(Willow Oak) 

Henry Avenue             (2000-
2120) 
Blue Oak          Oak Hollow 
Oak Court         Red Oak 
Oak Hill            Silver Oak 

Ed Szaky 
3379 Mildred Lane 
Lafayette, CA 94549 
(925) 284-7730 

Ed Szaky 
3379 Mildred Lane 
Lafayette, CA 94549 
(925) 284-7730 

Pinole Crest 
Gardens 

Estates Avenue  Don Bitner 
2920 Estates Avenue, #6 
Pinole, CA 94564 
(510) 758-5606 

Pinole Grove 
Housing 

800 John Street Edward Stohsner, 
Property Manager  
(510) 741-1900 
800 John Street 

 

99 of 141



18 

Pinole, CA 94564 

Pinole Ridge Canyon Drive 
Foothill Avenue 
Greenfield Circle 

City Scape 
Attn:  Robert Simms 
3450 3

rd
 Street, Ste. 1A 

San Francisco, CA 94124 
(415) 487-9953 

Steve Tietgen 
1859 Canyon Drive 
Pinole, CA 94564 
(510) 724-1961 

Pinole Ridge IV 
(Heritage 
Series) 

Alta Mirano      Bernardo Ct. 
Francisca           Ignacio Ct. 
Oak Ridge Rd. 

LLW Properties 
Attn:  E.G. “Doc” 
Waslohn 
1652 West Texas Street 
Fairfield, CA 94533 
(707) 428-0490  x3011 

Fernando Ronquillo 
1036 Francisca Court 
Pinole, CA 94564 
(510) 724-2736 

Pinole Shores 
Association I 

Blackberry Lane  (400-418) 
Del Monte Drive (301-327) 
Dorhmann Lane  (400-455) 
Live Oak Lane      (700-734) 
Wildrose Circle   (300-315) 

Collins Management 
Attn:  Paul Collins 
3220 Blume Drive, Ste. 
154 
Richmond, CA 94806 
(510) 262-1795 

Lorene Scalora 
706 Live Oak Lane 
Pinole, CA 94564 
(510) 741-7470 

Pinole Station Alamo St.          Barrett Ct. 
Christian Ct.      Curran Ct. 
Dean Ct.            Enlow Ct. 
Faria Ct.            Garrity Ct. 
Holliday Ct.       Ponderosa Trail 

Pinole Station HOA 
C/o Noble Community 
Management 
875-A Island Drive, #299 
Alameda, CA 94502 

Roberto Montenegro 
2464 Hill View Lane 
Pinole, CA 94564 
(510) 669-0115 

Primrose 
Terrace 

Primrose Terrace Primrose Terrace HOA 
Attn:  Michael Ireland 
P.O. Box 1048 
Groveland, CA 95321-
1048 
(510) 799-6826 

Rodney Warren, President 
638 Primrose Terrace 
Ronald Sebring, Vice-President 
617 Primrose Terrace 
Pinole, CA 94564 
(510) 741-7437 

Pinole Valley 
Townhomes 

Estates Avenue 
Ramona Street 

Property Innovations 
Attn:  Mary Ann Puppo 
2817 Crow Canyon 
Road., Ste. 201B 
San Ramon, CA 94583 
(925) 820-7562/Fax: 
(925) 820-0759 

Maria Bartlow 
2960 Estates Avenue 
Pinole, CA 94564 
(510) 222-7521 

Sunnyview 
Court 
HOA 

Sunnyview Drive 
Woy Circle 

Ernie Revecho 
113 Woy Circle 
Pinole, CA 94564 
(510) 741-7891/Fax: 
(510) 741-7745 

Ernie Revecho 
113 Woy Circle, Pinole 94564 
(510) 741-7891 
Fax: (510) 741-7745 

Willowbrook 
Condominiums 

Dursey Drive Powar Management 
Attn:  Mark Cherrington, 
Manager 
68 Mitchell Blvd., Ste. 
100 
San Rafael, CA 94903 
(415) 491-8930 

Robert Ray 
201 Dursey Drive 
Pinole, CA 94564 
Res:  (510) 741-8101 
Bus:  (415) 476-7470 

 

100 of 141



19 

Emergency Phone Listing 
 

In case of SEWAGE spill exceeding 1,000 gallons, refer to first 2 pages of this book. 
In case of Chemical spill or Hazmat problem call Pinole dispatch at ext. 953. 
 
Governmental 
Cal Dept of Transportation  (510) 286-6359  (Appian/Tara Hills & Appian/ 

Fitzgerald Traffic Signals) 
California Highway Patrol  (925) 646-4980 (707) 551-4200 Option 3 – 
Communications Ctr) 
Cal OSHA    (925) 602-6517 
City of Hercules   (510) 799-8200 
City of Hercules/Glen/PW  (510) 812-5366  
City of Hercules/Jeff/PW (Cell) (510) 812-4630   
CCC Flood Control   (925) 313-2270 Mon. – Thurs 6:30 a.m. to 5:00 p.m. 
CCC Flood Control/Maint. Div. (925) 313-7000  
CCC Health Dept   (925) 646-5225 
CCC Public Works/Maint. Div.    (925) 313-7000 
CCC Sheriff    (925) 646-2441 
CCC Signal Maintenance  (925) 313-7052 (925) 313-7054 (Pager Traffic Signals) 
East Bay Regional Parks  (510) 544-3010   or (510) 237-6896 (John Hitchen) 
 

Media (Newspaper) 

San Francisco Chronicle  (415) 777-1111 
West County Times   (510) 262-2787 
 

Television 

KGO - 7    (415) 954-7777 
KPIX - 5    (415) 362-5550 
KRON - 4    (415) 561-8000 
KTVU - 2    (415) 834-1212 
 

Medical 

Concentra Medical Center  (510) 222-8000 (Monday - Friday only)  
Kaiser Hospital (Martinez)  (925) 372-1999 
Kaiser Hospital (Richmond)  (510) 307-1500 
Kaiser Hospital (Vallejo)  (707) 651-1000 
   
Pipeline Companies 
Chevron Pipelines   (800) 762-3404 
Kinder Morgan Pipelines  (510) 233-2027 
Tosco/Konoco/Phillips Pipelines (800) 448-7676 
 

Transportation 

AC Transit    (510) 817-1717 

101 of 141



20 

BART     (510) 464-6725 
West Cat    (510) 724-7993 
BNSF    (800) 832-5452 *(909) 386-4217 (Emergency Service Interrupt) 
Union Pacific Railroad  (510) 891-7510 (800) 892-1283 
 
Utilities 
EBMUD (Maintenance Yard)  (510) 222-7976 (510) 835-3000 – Main # After Hours) 
Pacific Bell    611  
Pacific Gas & Electric   (800) 743-5000   
Underground Service Alert  (800) 227-2600 
West County Waste Water District (510) 222-6700 (510) 222-6799 (After Hours) 
 
 
Contractors 
Andre’s Mechanical & General Eng (925) 323-1871 (Hercules Lift Stations) 
Bill’s Underground   (510) 719-1739 Cell# (510) 932-1736 
Ernies Plumbing   (510) 758-1900 Cell# (510) 207-0825 
Pacific Pipelines   (707) 689-3357 
Roto Rooter    (925) 939-3100 
 
Equipment Rental 
Bay Area Barricade   (925) 686-1089 
Cresco     (925) 228-9811  
Hertz Equipment   (510) 307-4444 
Rain for Rent (24 Hr)   (510) 458-0200  (21,000 gals delivered in 24 hrs) 
United Rentals    (510) 562-3000 
D.P. Nicoli    (800) 695-5007 Shoring 
 
Sewer & Storm Drain Supplies 
Central Precast Concrete Inc.  (925) 462-6802 
D & L Supply    (800) 422-0848 
Phoenix Iron Works   (510) 465-9900 
Weco     (707) 644-6661 
 
Sewer Clean-up & Drying 
E.V. Link (Bruce Barnett)  (800) 413-2999 or (707) 479-1375 
Cure – Water Damage Restoration (925) 299-8706 (800) 470-2873 Cell: (925) 437-3113 
Ideal Restoration   (800) 379-6881           

 
Towing 
AAA Towing    (800) 222-4357 
Freeman Towing   (510) 233-0878 
J & O Tire    (510) 237-6344 
S & S Towing    (510) 232-8000 

102 of 141



21 

City of Pinole 
 

Warning 
 
 

Raw Sanitary Sewer Overflow--Area Closed--No Entry 

 
 

CONTAMINATED WATER  
DO NOT DIGEST, WADE, SWIM, FISH  

OR  
COME IN CONTACT 

 
PLEASE KEEP CHILDREN  

AND  
PETS OUT OF THE AREA. 

 
QUESTIONS CONCERNING  

EXPOSURE, POSTING AND CLEAN-UP  
SHOULD BE DIRECTED TO: 

 
Public Works Department during business hours at  

(510) 724-9010. 
  

103 of 141



22 

           

Refusal of Service 

To: Resident/Owner 
@  

From: Public Works Department 

Subject: Refusal of Property/Home Clean-up Due To Sewage 
Back-up (or other cause). 

Explain: 

Date:  _________ Time: _________ 

Homeowner or Resident 
Signature:  

Printed Name: 

The above acknowledges that clean-up services were offered, but were 
refused.  

Public Works Attendant: 

Public Works Department 
   2131 Pear Street 

   Pinole, CA  94564

Phone  (510) 724-8949 

Fax       (510) 741-3863 

104 of 141



   

 CITY COUNCIL  

 REPORT 7H 

            
  
  
                                                                                                                      
                                                            

                                                             

 
 
DATE: MAY 19, 2020 
 
TO:  MAYOR AND COUNCIL MEMBERS 
 
FROM:          TAMARA MILLER, DEVELOPMENT SERVICES DIRECTOR/ CITY   

ENGINEER 
 
SUBJECT: ADOPT A RESOLUTION APPROVING THE CITY OF PINOLE’S 

TITLE VI PROGRAM 
___________________________________________________________________ 
 
RECOMMENDATION 
 
It is recommended that the Council adopt a resolution (Attachment A) approving the 
adoption of a Title VI Program in the City of Pinole.  
 
BACKGROUND 
 
Title VI of the Civil Rights Act of 1964 prohibits discrimination on the basis of race, 
color, and national origin in programs and activities receiving federal financial 
assistance. It is the City’s desire to ensure its services are accessible to its citizens.  
 
Funding for the San Pablo Avenue Bridge Replacement Project received from the 
State includes federal funding. The U.S. Department of Transportation, in 
accordance with the provisions of Title VI of the Civil Rights Act of 1964, 49 U.S.C. 
Chapter 53 requires the adoption of a Title VI program pursuant to the Federal 
Transit Administration (FTA) Circular (FTA C) 47021.B, dated October 1, 2012.  
 
The FTA, as condition of its grants, requires that recipients have a Title VI Program 
adopted by its governing body every three years. In order to comply with the federal 
funding requirements, the City must have a Title VI program adopted by the City 
Council. City staff has created a Title VI program (Attachment B) in accordance with 
FTA Circular 4702.1 B, dated October 1, 2012. The program will require the City to 
ensure that no person is excluded from participation in, denied the benefits of, or 
otherwise subjected to discrimination under any of its programs, activities, or 
services on the basis of race, color, or national origin 
 
 
REVIEW AND ANALYSIS 
 
In order to maintain funding eligibility, the City must submit a resolution of the City 
Council adopting its Title VI Program for the next three years.  
 

105 of 141



City Council Report, 7H 
May 19, 2020                                       2 
 

Staff has prepared a Title VI Program in accordance with FTA Circular 4702.1 B, 
dated October 1, 2012. The Title VI Program provides the City’s commitment to 
ensuring that no person is excluded from participation in, denied the benefits of, or 
otherwise subjected to discrimination under any of its programs, activities, or 
services on the basis of race, color, or national origin. Specifically, the Title VI 
Program includes the following contents: 
 

• Title VI complaint filing procedures and forms; 

• Designation of a Title VI Coordinator; 

• Efforts to ensure compliance with the Title VI requirements; and  

• A Limited English Proficiency (LEP) Plan to ensure meaningful access to 
programs and activities by persons with limited English proficiency. 

 
FISCAL IMPACT 
 
There is no fiscal impact for adopting the City’s Title VI Program. Compliance in the 
program will become an integral part of the City’s overall project management.  
 
ATTACHMENTS 
 
A. Resolution 
B.  Title VI Program  
 

106 of 141



ATTACHMENT A 

 

 

RESOLUTION NO. 2020-xx 
 

RESOLUTION OF THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF PINOLE, 
COUNTY OF CONTRA COSTA, STATE OF CALIFORNIA, APPROVING THE CITY OF 

PINOLE’S TITLE VI PROGRAM 
 
 

WHEREAS, Title VI of the Civil Rights Act of 1964 (Title VI) states the following: “No 
person in the United States shall, on the ground of race, color, or national origin, be excluded 
from participation in, be denied the benefits of, or be subjected to discrimination under any 
program or activity receiving Federal financial assistance”; and  

 
WHEREAS, the Federal Transit Administration (FTA), as a condition of its grants, 

requires that grant recipients have an adopted Title VI program every three years; and 
 
WHEREAS, staff has prepared a Title VI Program in accordance with FTA Circular 

4702.1B, dated October 1, 2012; and 
 
WHEREAS, the City is committed to ensuring that no person is excluded from 

participation in, denied the benefits of, or otherwise subjected to discrimination under any of its 
programs, activities, or services on the basis of race, color, or national origin.  

 
 NOW THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED THAT, the City Council of the City of Pinole 
does hereby approve the City’s Title VI Program.  
 
 PASSED AND ADOPTED at a regular meeting of the Pinole City Council held on the19th 
day of May 2020, by the following vote:  

 
AYES:  COUNCILMEMBERS:  
  
NOES: COUNCILMEMBERS:  
  
ABSENT: COUNCILMEMBERS:  
  
ABSTAIN: COUNCILMEMBERS:  
 

I hereby certify that the foregoing resolution was introduced, passed, and adopted on the 19th 
day of May 2020. 
 
____________________________ 
Heather Iopu, CMC 
City Clerk 
 

107 of 141



CITY OF PINOLE 

PUBLIC WORKS DEPARTMENT 

TITLE VI PLAN 

JUNE 2020 

Tamara Miller, P.E. 
Development Services Director/Public Works Director 

City of Pinole 
Department of Public Works 

2131 Pear Street 
Pinole, CA 94564 

ATTACHMENT B

108 of 141



 

 
 

TABLE OF CONTENTS 

 

I. INTRODUCTION ................................................................................................................ 3 

 

II. TITLE VI OF THE CIVIL RIGHTS ACT OF 1964 AND RELATED AUTHORITIES .............. 4 

 

III. ORGANIZATION, STAFFING, AND RESPONSIBILITIES .................................................. 4 

 

IV.   DESIGNATION OF TITLE VI COORDINATOR ................................................................... 5 

 

V.   FEDERAL-AID TITLE VI IMPLEMENTATION ...................................................................... 5 

 

ATTACHMENT A – NOTICE OF RIGHTS .................................................................................13 

 

ATTACHMENT B – LIMITED ENGLISH PROFICIENCY (LEP) PLAN  .....................................14 

 

ATTACHMENT C – DISCRIMINATION PROCEDURE AND COMPLAINT FORM ....................19 

 

APPENDIX A ............................................................................................................................23 

 

APPENDIX B ............................................................................................................................26 

 

 
 

109 of 141



 

Page 3 of 26 
 

I. INTRODUCTION 

As a recipient of federal funds, the City of Pinole’s Department of Public Works (Department) 

(hereinafter referred to as “Department”) is required to comply with Title VI of the Civil Rights 

Act of 1964 and ensure that services and benefits are provided on a nondiscriminatory basis. 

The Department has in place a Title VI Complaint Procedure, which outlines a process for local 

disposition of Title VI complaints and is consistent with the guidelines found in the Federal 

Transit Administration Circular 4702.1B, dated October 1, 2012.  

Title VI states that: 

“No person in the United States shall, on the grounds of race, color, national origin, sex, 

age, disability, religion, sexual orientation, or gender identity be excluded from 

participation in, be denied the benefits of, or subjected to discrimination under any 

program or activity receiving Federal financial assistance.” 

The Department is committed to complying with Title VI requirements for all programs and 

services delivered to the public. Furthermore, the Department expects every manager, 

supervisor, employee, and vendor and contractor sub-recipient of federal aid funds administered 

by the City of Pinole’s Department of Public Works to be aware of the apply the intent of Title VI 

of the Civil Rights Act of 1964 in performing assigned duties.  

The Federal Highway Administration (FHWA) and Federal Transportation Authority (FTA) 

requires recipients of federal-aid highway funds and public transportation funds to prepare and 

implement a program to clarify roles, responsibilities and procedures established to ensure 

compliance with Title VI of the Civil Rights Act of 1964. 

The Department’s Title VI Program (Program) focuses on fair and equitable access by the 

public and provides policy direction necessary to ensure compliance with Title VI of the Civil 

Rights Act of 1964 and related nondiscrimination statutes.  

The Program includes a general overview of how the Department will: 

• Handle a Title VI Complaint 

• Engage public participation 

• Provide services to Limited English Proficiency populations 

• Train employees and managers in recognizing Title VI situations 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

110 of 141



 

Page 4 of 26 
 

II. TITLE VI OF THE CIVIL RIGHTS ACT OF 1964 AND RELATED AUTHORITIES 

Title VI of the 1964 Civil Rights Act provides that no person in the United States shall, on the 

grounds of race, color, national origin, or sex be excluded from participation in, be denied the 

benefits of, or be otherwise subjected to discrimination under any program or activity receiving 

Federal financial assistance (implementation through 23 CFR 200.9 and 49 CFR 21). 

Section 162(a) of the Federal-Aid Highway Act of 1973 (Section 324, Title 23 U.S.C.) added 

the requirement that there be no discrimination on the grounds of sex.  

Section 504 of the Rehabilitation Act of 1973 provides nondiscrimination under Federal 

grants and programs 

The Age Discrimination Act of 1975 (Section 6101-6107, Title 42 U.S.C.) prohibits 

discrimination in federally assisted programs.  

The Civil Rights Restoration Act of 1987, P.L. 100-209 – provides clarification of the original 

intent of Congress in Title VI of the 1964 Civil Rights Act, Title IX of the Education Amendments 

of 1972, the Age Discrimination Act of 1975, and Section 504 of the Rehabilitation Act of 1973. 

(It restores the broad, institution-wide scope and coverage of the non-discrimination statutes to 

include all programs and activities of federal-aid related, sub-recipients and contractors, 

whether such programs and activities are federally assisted or not.  

Additional Authorities and Citations Include: 

Title VI of the Civil Rights Act of 1964: 42 USC 2000d to 2000d-4; 42 USC 460 to 4655; 23 
USC109(h); 23 USC 324; DOT Order 1050.2; EO 12250; EO 12898; 28 CFR 50.3; EO 13166. 
 
III. ORGANIZATION, STAFFING, AND RESPONSIBILITIES 

Title VI Coordinator 

The Title VI Coordinator is responsible for the overall Title VI program implementation and 

performs the lead and participatory role in the development and implementation of Title VI 

program compliance. 

The Department has identified the position of Senior Project Manager to perform the duties of 

the Title VI Coordinator. The position is located within the Public Works Administration & 

Engineering division of the Public Works Department. The Senior Project Manager is: 

Misha Kaur 
Senior Project Manager 

Title VI Coordinator  
510-724-9839 

mkaur@ci.pinole.ca.us 
 

The Senior Project Manager provides guidance and technical assistance on Title VI matters and 

has overall program responsibility for preparing required reports regarding Title VI compliance 

and initiating monitoring activities including developing procedures. This Senior Project Manager 

is appointed by and reports directly to the Director of Public Works and responsibilities include: 

• Preparing a Title VI plan and annual report on the agency’s behalf; 

111 of 141



 

Page 5 of 26 
 

• Processing, recording, and disseminating Title VI complaints received by the 

Department; 

• Developing procedures for the prompt processing and disposition of complaints; 

• Developing procedures for the collection and analysis of statistical data; 

• Developing a program to conduct Title VI reviews of program areas; 

• Conducting annual Title VI assessments of pertinent program areas; 

• Developing Title VI information for dissemination; 

• Establishing procedures for resolving deficiency status and reducing to writing the 
remedial action agreed to be necessary.  
 

IV. DESIGNATION OF TITLE VI COORDINATOR 

In complying with the Title VI of the Civil Rights Act of 1964, and other federal mandates, 

I hereby designate the Senior Project Manager as the Public Works Department Title VI 

Coordinator.  

 

_______________________________    _________________ 

Tamara Miller, P.E.        Date 

Director of Public Works 
 

V. FEDERAL-AID TITLE VI IMPLEMENTATION 

1. Public Participation/Outreach Activities 

 

The intent of the public participation is to help ensure that the citizens of Pinole are 

kept informed and involved in Department’s various programs, projects and activities. 

The Department is committed to ensuring it serves the citizens in the City of Pinole 

by delivering efficiency, responsive and cost-effective public works services that 

protect and enhance the safety, health, and quality of life in the City of Pinole. The 

Department values public participation and encourages involvement by the 

community.  

 

Following are the outreach strategies that will be implemented by the Department in 

an effort to reach the citizens of the City of Pinole and provide equal access to up-to-

date information and promote an active channel of communication.  

 

a) The Department will develop and publish a “Notice of Rights” that as a recipient 

of federal-aid funds the federal-aid programs are equal opportunity programs and 

indicating that federal law prohibits discrimination. Attachment A.  

 

b) The Department will disseminate Title VI information and related statutes to the 

general public and, where appropriate, in languages other than English stating 

that the Department administers programs subject to the non-discrimination 

requirements of Title VI, summarizing those requirements, noting the availability 

of Title VI information from the City and state and federal agencies, stating 

persons’ rights under the laws, and briefly explaining the procedures for filing 

complaints. The Department will develop and publish a Title VI brochure to 

provide the public with this Title VI information. The brochure will also be 

112 of 141



 

Page 6 of 26 
 

translated into Spanish, and Tagalog. This brochure will be offered for distribution 

to the general public and other parties or individuals participating in or otherwise 

benefitting from federal aid programs. The brochure will be available in mediums 

other than the written word upon request, and the brochure will be periodically 

reviewed, and revisions will be made as appropriate. Where feasible, the 

brochure and other materials relevant to this Title VI program will be prominently 

displayed. The Department will also include information on Title VI requirements, 

complaint procedures and the rights of beneficiaries in handbooks, manuals, 

pamphlets, and other material which are ordinarily distributed to the public to 

describe the federal aid programs and the requirements for participation by 

recipients and beneficiaries. 

 

c) Where a significant number or proportion of the population eligible to be served 

or likely to be directed affected by a federal aid program needs service or 

information in a language other than English in order to be effectively informed or 

to participate in the program, the Department shall take reasonable steps to 

provide information in appropriate languages to such persons.  

 

d) A Department of Public Words Civil Rights Title VI Program webpage will be 

developed containing this Title VI federal-aid Program and other information and 

publications regarding Title VI and related statutes. The web page will be 

accessible to all Department employees and the public via internet.  

 

e) Site and facility location – The Department shall not make a selection of a site or 

location of a facility for participants in and beneficiaries of the Department’s 

federal aid programs if that selection could exclude individuals from participation 

in, to deny them the benefits of, or to subject them to discrimination on the 

grounds of race, color, and national origin or could substantially impair the 

accomplishment of the objectives of non-discrimination on the aforesaid grounds.  

 

f) Upon request from persons served by or participating in federal-aid programs 

administered by the Department, the Department will provide sign language 

interpreters and make information available to the public in alternate formats, 

such as Braille. The following language (or a version of) will be incorporated into 

all public participation/outreach materials: 

 

Individuals requiring reasonable accessibility accommodations may request 

written materials in alternate formats, physical accessibility accommodations, 

sign language interpreters, language interpreters, or other reasonable 

accommodations by contacting our Senior Project Manager at (510) 724-9839, 

from 7:30 am – 5 pm, Monday through Thursday (excluding holidays). Persons 

who are deaf or hard of hearing may make contact by first dialing the California 

Relay Service at 7-1-1. Requests should be made at least one week in advance 

to ensure availability.  

 

2. Department Programmatic Activities 

 

113 of 141



 

Page 7 of 26 
 

a) Limited English Proficiency Program 

In accordance with the Executive Order 13166 (“Improving Access to Services 

For Persons with Limited English Proficiency”), the Department will develop an 

evaluation and implementation program to ensure that Limited English 

Proficiency (LEP) persons who are served by federal-aid programs administered 

by the Department are provided, free of charge, meaningful access to programs, 

services, and information to without unduly burdening the fundamental mission of 

the Department. Specifically, the LEP program will address language barriers 

that could prevent LEP persons from obtaining services and information relating 

to services, programs, and projects.  

 

For federal-aid programs administered by the Department, the Department will 

conduct an LEP Needs Assessment using the four-factor analysis recommended 

by United States Department of Transportation to identify reasonable steps to 

ensure meaningful access to its programs and activities by Limited English 

Proficiency (LEP) persons in accordance with the guidance described in 

Attachment B. 

 

b) Environmental Justice in Minority and Low-Income Populations 

In accordance with Executive Order 12898 (“Federal Actions to Address 

Environmental Justice in Minority Populations and Low-Income Populations”) the 

Department will develop strategies to address disproportionately high and 

adverse human health or environmental effects on minority and low-income 

populations, to promote nondiscrimination in Federal-aid programs substantially 

affecting human health and the environment, and to provide minority and low-

income communities access to public information and an opportunity for public 

participation in matters relating to human health or the environment. 

 

c) Site and Facility Location 
The Department shall not make a selection of a site or location of a facility for 
participants in and beneficiaries of the Department’s federal aid programs if that 
selection could exclude individuals from participation in, to deny them the 
benefits of, or subject them to discrimination on the grounds of race, color and 
national origin or could substantially impair the accomplishment of the objectives 
of nondiscrimination on the aforesaid grounds. 
 

d) Data Collection 
The Department will gather, analyze and maintain statistical data on race, color 
and national origin of participants in and beneficiaries of the Department’s 
federal-aid programs to determine the investment benefits and burdens to the 
eligible population, including minority and low-income populations. Data 
gathering procedures will be reviewed regularly to ensure sufficiency of the data 
administration. The Department will regularly analyze and evaluate the data 
collected and data-collecting procedures to determine the effectiveness of 
outreach methods in meeting requirements of the Title VI Program to ensure no 
group is excluded during the decision-making process or is not given an 
opportunity to voice their opinions or concerns. The Title VI Coordinator will 
collect annual data on DBE goals, LEP encounters and requests, discrimination 

114 of 141



 

Page 8 of 26 
 

complaints, and construction contract oversight and verification of Title VI 
compliance.  
 

e) Complaint Process 
The Department will ensure that no employee or agent of the Department shall 
intimidate, retaliate, threaten, coerce, or discriminate against any individual for 
the purpose of interfering with any right or privilege to file a complaint, or 
because an individual has made or participated in a complaint. If any individual 
believes that s/he or any other federal aid program beneficiaries have been 
subjected to unequal treatment or discrimination on the grounds of race, color or 
national origin, s/he may exercise their right to file a complaint with the 
Department.  
 
All complaints received by the Department will be forwarded to Caltrans to be 
submitted to the Federal Highway Administration (FHWA) Division Office. 
Complaints received by the Department will be sent within one business day of 
receipt via email to Title.VI@dot.ca.gov.  

 
The Department’s Discrimination Complaint Procedure and Complaint forms are 
available online at www.ci.pinole.ca.us/government_services/public_works  
 
A Spanish version of the Complaint Procedure and Complaint Form can be made 
available upon request. Requests should be made to the Department’s Title VI 
Coordinator. The Complaint Process and the Complaint Form is outlined in 
Attachment C. 
 

f) Training 
The Department will provide training every two years on Title VI and its related 
statutes, including the Executive Order on Limited English Proficiency, for 
managers, supervisors, and staff, especially those with frequent public interaction 
in the administration of federal-aid programs.  
 

g) Title VI Construction Contract Provisions 
The Department shall include the provisions indicated in Appendix A of Exhibit B 
of the “Administering Agency-State Agreement for Federal-Aid Projects Master 
Agreement” of the Local Assistance Program Manual (LAPM) in contacts and 
agreements, where applicable, between the Department and contractors.  
 
Federal-aid construction contracts must include provisions, which require 
compliance with Title VI. The specific contract provision language is included in 
the Federal Highway Administration (FHWA) Form 1273 that is physically 
inserted in the federal-aid construction contract (See Chapter 12, “Plans, 
Specifications and Estimate”, of the LAPM). 
 
The “Local Agency Construction Contract Administrative Checklist” (Exhibit 15-A 
of the LAPM) confirms that DBE and labor/EEO compliance requirements are 
performed and documented in project files. Exhibit 15-A of the LAPM documents 
that the local agency will meet all of the requirements prior to the award of the 
construction contract (See Chapter 15, “Advertise and Award Project”, of the 
LAPM). 
 

115 of 141

mailto:Title.VI@dot.ca.gov
http://www.ci.pinole.ca.us/government_services/public_works


 

Page 9 of 26 
 

The “Resident’s Engineer’s Construction Contract Administration Checklist” 
(Exhibit 15-B of the LAPM) is completed by the local agency Resident Engineer. 
The purpose of this checklist is to assist the local agencies in administering 
federal-aid highway construction projects. If also provides a record that the 
EEO/Wage Rate/False Statements posters are being posted at specific locations, 
that employee interviews will be conducted in accordance with the Labor 
Compliance/EEO interview form, and that DBE requirements are met. The local 
agency submits Exhibit 15-B, along with the Award Package, shortly after award 
of the construction contract (See Chapter 15, “Advertise and Award Project”, of 
the LAPM). 
 

h) Consultant Procurement 
The Director of Public Works is responsible for recommending consultant firms to 
the City Council for final selection, negotiation, and award. Title VI language is 
incorporated in Public Works’ consultant contracts.  
 
Department contracts contain the following language regarding Compliance and 
Civil Rights Laws: 
 
Compliance with Civil Rights Laws 
 
Contractor hereby assures that it will comply with Subchapter VI of the Civil 
Rights Act of 1964, 42 USC Sections 2000 (e)(17), to the end that no person 
shall, on the grounds of race, color, and national origin, be excluded from 
participation in, be denied the benefits or, or be otherwise subjected to 
discrimination under this Contract or under any project, program or activity 
supported by this Contract. Contractor shall comply with its EEO Certification 
(Form PW-7). 
 

i) Program Assessment and Remedial Action 
The Department will conduct periodic Title VI self-assessment of its programs 
and activities for compliance. Where applicable, revise policies, procedures and 
directives to include Title VI requirements.  
 
When irregularities occur in the administration of Title VI programs, corrective 
action will be taken to resolve identified Title VI issues. Swift action will be taken 
to correct any deficiencies found by the Department, Caltrans, or the Federal 
Highway Administration (FHWA), not to exceed 90 days, in order to implement 
Title VI compliance in accordance with this plan.  
 
The Department will periodically conduct Title VI compliance reviews of 
Consultants, Contractors, and Subcontractors. The review of select recipients of 
Federal Aid Highway or other Federal Funds, will be conducted to ensure 
adherence to Title VI requirements. The Department shall confirm guidelines 
provided to consultants, contractors, or subcontractors including Title VI 
language, provisions, and related requirements, as applicable.  

 
j) Design/Environmental Review Process 

The scope, complexity, and impacts of a project will determine which National 
Environmental Policy Act (NEPA) Environmental Document will be prepared: (1) 
A Categorical Exclusion (CE) for those actions that have been deemed 

116 of 141



 

Page 10 of 26 
 

legislatively or administratively exempt from NEPA; (2) an Environmental 
Assessment (EA) and Find of No Significant Impact (FONSI) for actions that will 
not result in adverse environmental effects; and (3) an Environmental Impact 
Statement (EIS) for actions that will potentially involve adverse environmental 
effects.  
 
The Department will ensure compliance with Title VI requirements in all aspects 
of conducting an EA or EIS. During the review process, adequate time will be 
given for appropriate review and comments, as applicable, on draft EIS/EA, to 
ensure there are no violations of the Federal Civil Rights Act, as amended.  
 
In order to ensure dissemination of information and foster participation from 
affected populations when preparing an EA or EIS, Department staff will: place 
public notices in applicable general and minority media, select accessible 
locations and times for public hearings or meetings, and arrange for translation 
services as needed (particularly in projects impacting predominant minority 
communities). The Department will ensure that the public will be provided with 
information pertaining to their rights and given contact information to address 
environmental concerns.  
 

k) Environmental Justice 
The Department strives to identify and address the public works and 
transportation needs of the citizens of the City of Pinole and ensures that the 
benefits and burdens of investments are being fairly distributed. Safety and 
improving the quality of life of Pinole residents is the Department’s primary 
concern.  
 
The Department strives for accountability and transparency in all the services 
provided to the community. The Department maintains a staffed public service 
counter, Monday – Thursday 8 am – 12 pm, and 1 pm – 4:30 pm for both walk in 
assistance or contact by phone.  
 

l) Environmental Activities 
Executive Order 12898 directs federal agencies to identify and address the 
disproportionately high and adverse human health and environmental effects of 
their actions on minority and low-income populations. Subrecipients are required 
to comply with the federal government's Environmental Justice (EJ) policy by 
integrating EJ principals into their programs. EJ is the fair treatment of people of 
all races, cultures, and incomes with respect to the development, adoption, 
implementation, and enforcement of environmental laws, regulations, and 
policies. 
 
If a project has a federal permit requirement or a source of federal funding, it is 
also subject to the National Environmental Policy Act (NEPA) process. Federal 
projects must analyze the potential environmental effects, including human 
health, economic, and social effects of their proposed actions on minority and 
low-income communities when required by NEPA. Any proposed project that will 
have a disproportionately high and adverse effect on minority or low-income 
populations will be required to include analysis and provide mitigation measures 
or alternatives that would avoid or reduce the high and adverse effect. 
 

117 of 141



 

Page 11 of 26 
 

To comply with NEPA, public involvement and community outreach is necessary 
during the environmental documentation process, from project scoping to 
circulation of the draft and final documents for public review and comment. 
Through this process, EJ is reinforced and offers protection to the low-income 
and minority communities from discrimination and ensures their full participation. 
 

m) Right-of-Way Activities 
Department staff manages and coordinates the appraisal and acquisition of real 
property and relocation assistance services for public works projects. The right of 
way acquisition process entails appraisal of property, negotiation of terms, and 
conditions for acquisition, and assistance in the relocation of displaced individual, 
business, farm operations, nonprofit organization, and property management. 
 
The Department will ensure Title VI compliance of right of way projects as 
follows: 

• Ensure equal opportunity in all aspects of procuring real estate service 
contracting and appraisal agreements.  

• Follow adopted procurement policies in the acquisition of contracted 
services. 

• Incorporate Title VI language and assurance statements in all surveys of 
property owners and tenants after the conclusion of all business. 
Coordinate the preparation of deeds, permits, and leases to ensure the 
inclusion of appropriate clauses, including Title VI assurances.  

• Ensure that appraised values and communications associated with the 
appraisal and negotiation operations result in equitable treatment.  

• If applicable, ensure comparable replacement dwellings are available and 
assistance is given to all displaced persons and entities by the property 
acquisition process.  

• Assist with communications with property owners, lessees, renters, and 
others, as appropriate, to help ensure we evaluate applicability of, and 
compliance with, LEP and EJ requirements for projects. Provide access 
to information in alternative languages when needed.  

• Maintain statistical data, including race, color, national origin, age, 
gender, disability, LEP and income levels on all relocates affected by 
federally funded projects. 
 

n) Construction Activities 
Department staff is responsible for the planning, design, funding, operating and 
maintaining of roadway; bridges; buildings; water and wastewater facilities; 
drainage and related transportation facilities; and water resources. New 
construction contracts are used as well as in-house personnel, the resources of 
contractors, vendors, equipment, and materials. The Department’s construction 
project information can be found on the Department webpages. 
 
Department staff will ensure Title VI compliance of construction projects as 
follows: 

• Review all federally funded projects for application of Disadvantaged 
Business Enterprise (DBE) goals. As appropriate, include DBE provisions 
in those projects with designated goals; 

118 of 141



 

Page 12 of 26 
 

• Include Title VI language and provision language in all federally funded 
construction contracts. Documents and language shall be periodically 
reviewed to ensure compliance with current laws and regulations; 

• Review and ensure all appropriate Title VI language is placed in bid 
announcements and applicable construction documents, consistent with 
the Department’s Title VI Program; 

• Monitor all maintenance and construction operations to ensure non-
discrimination throughout all operations; 

• Work closely with environmental, and other staff to avoid or minimize the 
environmental impact of a project during construction; and  

• Address any LEP or EJ issues. 
 

o) Annual Report:  
Per FHWA requirements, the Department will develop an annual report of Title VI 
Goals and Accomplishments (G&A) to document progress towards compliance 
with Title VI in programs and activities. This report will include any updates to the 
Title VI Program that reflects organizational, policy, and implementation changes, 
and a Work Plan outlining Title VI monitoring and review activities planned for the 
coming plan year. The G&A Report will list all accomplishments that the 
Department has achieved in the area of Title VI, such as program area reviews, 
training, and processing of Title VI complaints. The Goals section of the report 
will explain what the Department plans to accomplish in the upcoming year in 
relation to the Title VI program.  
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

119 of 141



 

Page 13 of 26 
 

ATTACHMENT A 

NOTICE OF RIGHTS 

 

City of Pinole 
Department of Public Works  
 
 
 

 

Your Rights Under Title VI of the Civil Rights Act of 1964 
 

Title VI of the Civil Rights Act of 1964 provides that “no person in the 
United States shall, on the grounds of race, color, or national origin, be 
excluded from participation in, be denied the benefits of, or be subjected 
to discrimination under any program or activity receiving federal financial 
assistance.” Related statutes provide protection against discrimination on 
the basis of sex, age, disability, and socioeconomic status.  
 
Any person who believes they have been discriminated against may file a 
written complaint within 180 days of the alleged discrimination. Additional 
information and Title VI Discrimination Complaint Forms can be obtained 
on the City of Pinole Department of Public Works webpage at 
www.ci.pinole.ca.us/city_government/public_works 
 
Title VI Discrimination Complaints may be submitted to: 
 
Misha Kaur 
Senior Project Manager 
Title VI Coordinator 
 
City of Pinole 
Department of Public Works 
2131 Pear Street 
Pinole, CA 94564 
(510) 724 – 9839 
mkaur@ci.pinole.ca.us 
 
 
 
 

 

Para información en español, o para presentar una Queja de Discriminación del 

Título Vi, sirvase llamar al 510-724-9839 para asistencia. 
 

120 of 141



 

Page 14 of 26 
 

ATTACHMENT B 

Limited English Proficiency (LEP) Plan 
 

As a recipient of federal funds, the City of Pinole’s Department of Public Works (Department) 
(hereinafter referred to as “Department”) is required to take reasonable steps to ensure 
meaningful access to its programs and activities by Limited English Proficiency (LEP) persons. 
While designed to be flexible and fact-dependent standard, the starting point is an individualized 
assessment that balances the following four factors: 

• the proportion, numbers, and distribution of LEP Persons 

• the frequency of contact with LEP individuals 

• the nature and importance of the program, activity, or service to LEP; and 

• the resources available to the Department and costs. 
 
The intent of this guidance is to suggest a balance that ensures meaningful access by LEP 
persons to critical services while not imposing undue burdens on small businesses, small local 
governments, or small nonprofit organizations. After applying the above four-factor analysis to 
the various kinds of contacts a recipient has with the public, the Department may conclude that 
different language assistance measures are sufficient to ensure meaningful access to the 
programs, activities, and services it offers. For instance, some of the Department’s activities will 
have a greater impact on or contact with LEP persons that others, and thus may require more in 
the way of language assistance. The flexibility that the Department has in addressing the needs 
of the LEP populations it serves does not diminish, and should not be used to minimize, the 
obligation that those needs to be addressed. Sub-recipients of federal-aid funds from the United 
States Department of Transportation should apply the following four factors to the various kinds 
of contacts that they have with the public to assess language needs and decide what 
reasonable steps they should take to ensure meaningful access for LEP persons.  
 

1. The Number or Proportion of LEP Persons Served or Encountered in the Eligible 
Service Population 
 
The Census Bureau has a range of four classifications of how well people speak 
English. The classifications are: ‘very well,’ ‘well,’ ‘not well,’ and ‘not at all.’ For our 
planning purposes, we are considering people that speak English less than ‘very 
well’ as Limited English Proficient persons.  
 
As seen in Table #1, the 2013-2017 American Community Survey 5-Year Estimates 
show that 6,700 (36%) of individuals in the City of Pinole speak a language other 
than English; of those individuals, 2293 (34%) have identified themselves as 
speaking English less than ‘very well’. Of those individuals, there are 607 (26.5%) 
individuals in the Spanish language group, 331 (14.4%) individuals in the Indo-
European languages group, and 1355 (59.1%) individuals in the Asian and Pacific 
Islander languages group.  
 
Table #1 
LANGUAGE SPOKEN AT HOME 

Language Number of 
Speakers 

Speak English less than 
“Very Well” 

Population 5 years and over 18,481 2,293 

Speak only English at Home 11,781 X 

121 of 141



 

Page 15 of 26 
 

Speak a Language other than 
English at home 

6,700 2,293 

Spanish 2,398 607 

Indo-European Languages 1,048 331 

Asian and Pacific Island  3,167 1,355 

All Other Languages 87 X 

Source: U.S. Census Bureau, 2013 – 2017 American Community Survey 5-Year 
Estimates 
 

2. Frequency of Contact with LEP Individuals  
The Department has conducted an informal survey of our employees with regard to 
whether they have had encounters with LEP individuals in the performance of their 
job functions and found that, indeed, they have had encounters with LEP individuals. 
The Department is prepared to serve people who speak multiple languages via a 
multi-pronged approach consisting of Department staff, translated written materials, 
and use of translation smartphone applications. Given the number of LEP 
individuals, as displayed in Table #1 (above), the probability of our employees to 
encounter an LEP individual is low.  
 

3. The Nature and Importance of the Program, Activity, or Service to the LEP 
The Department’s main functions is to improve and maintain the public infrastructure 
and assets within the City of Pinole. The infrastructure and assets include: roads and 
bridges, streetlights, signals, street trees, stormwater collection systems, parks, 
wastewater collection system, water pollution control plant, city owned buildings, and 
city owned fleets.  
 
Any denial or delay of access to services or information provided by the Department 
could have serious implications on an LEP individual, especially services such as 
water, sewer, roads and bridges. Therefore, the denial of services to an LEP 
individual could have a significant detrimental effect. Although the LEP population in 
the City of Pinole is low, the Department will ensure accessibility to all of our 
programs, services, and activities.  
 

4. Resources available to the City of Pinole’s Department of Public Works and costs 
US Department of Transportation Policy Guidance Concerning Recipients’ 
Responsibilities to Limited English Proficient (LEP) Persons published in the Federal 
Register: December 14, 2005 (Volume 70, Number 239) states: 
 

” A recipient’s level of resources and the costs imposed may have an impact on 
the nature of the steps it should take in providing meaningful access for LEP 
persons. Smaller recipients with more limited budgets are not expected to 
provide the same level of language services as larger recipients with larger 
budgets. In addition, “reasonable steps” may cease to be reasonable where the 
costs imposed substantially exceed the benefits. Recipients should carefully 
explore the most cost-effective means of delivering competent and accurate 
language services before limiting services due to resource concerns.” 

 
Based on this guidance, we have reviewed our resources and deemed that given the 
low concentration of LEP individuals in the City of Pinole, upon request, we will 
translate our vital documents into the language requested to ensure accessibility.  

122 of 141



 

Page 16 of 26 
 

Although there will not be a fixed amount allocated from our annual budget for the 
translation of documents, the cost associated with the necessary translation of 
document in order to comply with LEP requirements will be allocated on an as-
needed basis and charged to the program that is responsible for the information 
being requested.  

  
Safe Harbor Stipulation 
Federal law provides a “Safe Harbor” situation so that recipients can ensure with greater 
certainty that they comply with their obligation to provide written translations in languages other 
than English. A “Safe Harbor” means that if a recipient provides written translation in certain 
circumstances, such action will be considered strong evidence of compliance with the recipient’s 
written-translation obligations under Title VI.  
 
The failure to provide written translations under the circumstances does not mean there in non-
compliance, but rather provides a guide for recipients that would like greater certainty of 
compliance than can be provided by a fact-intensive, four factor analysis. For example, even if a 
Safe Harbor is not used, if written translation of a certain document(s) would be so burdensome 
as to defeat the legitimate objectives of the program, it is not necessary. Other ways of 
providing meaningful access, such as effective oral interpretation of certain vital documents, 
might be acceptable under such circumstances. 
 
Strong evidence of compliance with the recipient’s written translation obligations under “Safe 
Harbor” includes providing written translations of vital documents for each eligible LEP language 
group that constitutes 5% or 1,000, whichever is less, of the population of persons eligible to be 
served or likely to be affected or encountered. Translation of other documents, if needed, can 
be provided orally. 
 
This “Safe Harbor” provision applies to the translation of written documents only. It does not 
affect the requirement to provide meaningful access to LEP individuals through competent oral 
interpreters where oral language services are needed and are reasonable. 
 
Given that the number of LEP individuals in the City of Pinole is above the Safe Harbor 
threshold, written translations of vital documents will be made upon request, or oral 
interpretation can be provided. The City of Pinole’s Department of Public Works upon request 
will translate vital documents, which may include but not be limited to: the complaint form, 
complaint procedures, and all public meeting notices. The Department has contracted with an 
interpretation and translation service to provide this service immediately. 
 
Providing Notice to LEP Persons 
Per USDOT LEP guidance, once an agency has decided, based on the four factors, that it will 
provide language service, it is important that the recipient notify LEP persons of services 
available free of charge. Recipients should provide this notice in languages LEP persons would 
understand. The guidance provides several examples of notification including: 

1. Signage, in languages that an LEP individual would understand that free language is 
available with advance notice.  

2. Stating in outreach materials that free language services are available from the 
agency. 

3. Working with community-based organizations and other stakeholders to inform LEP 
individuals of their recipient’s services, including the availability of language 
assistance services.  

 

123 of 141



 

Page 17 of 26 
 

Statements in languages that an LEP individual would understand will be placed in public 
information and public notices informing LEP individuals that those requiring language 
assistance and/or special accommodations will be provided the requested service free of 
charge, with reasonable advance notice to the City of Pinole’s Department of Public Works.  
 
Options and Proposed Actions 
 
Options: 
 
Federal fund recipients have two (2) main ways to provide language services: oral interpretation 
either in person or via telephone interpretation service and written translation. The correct mix 
should be based on what is both necessary and reasonable in light of the four-factor analysis. 
 
The Department is defining an interpreter as a person who translates spoken language orally, 
as opposed to a translator, who translates written language or who transfers the meaning of 
written text from one language into another. The person who translates orally is not a 
translator, but an interpreter. 
 
Due to limited financial and staffing resources, it is necessary to limit language aid to the most 
basic and cost-effective services. However, when requested appropriate assistance will be 
provided. 
 
What the Department will do. What actions will the Department take? 

• Notify the public that interpreter services are available upon request, with 72-hour 
advance notice. 

• With advance notice of 72-hours, the Department will provide interpreter services at 
public meetings, including language translation and signage for the hearing impaired. 

• The Census Bureau “iSpeak” Language Identification Card will be distributed to all 
employees that may potentially encounter LEP individuals (Appendix A) 

• Once the LEP individual’s language has been identified, staff will use the LEP Staff 
Reference Card (Appendix B) and use the appropriate listed resources to provide 
interpretation or translation services. 

• Publications of the City of Pinole’s Department of Public Works complaint form and 
procedures are made available online and upon request (Spanish version will be 
developed). 

• In the event that a Department employee encounters an LEP individual, the employee 
will follow the procedure listed below: 

 
Office Customer Encounter 
 

1. Provide an iSpeak Language Identification Card to determine the language spoken by 
the LEP individual. 

2. Once the foreign language is determined, staff will use the LEP Staff Reference Card to 
access an interpreter, or staff can provide information to Title VI Coordinator who will 
contact an interpreter. The Department currently has one person on staff that is 
receiving a pay differential to provide interpreter and/or translation service in Spanish for 
City business. The LEP Staff Reference Card has their name and contact information 
listed. If an interpreter is not available, staff will be trained on using a smartphone 
application for translating in the requested language.   

124 of 141



 

Page 18 of 26 
 

3. If the need is for a document to be translated, the Title VI Coordinator will coordinate to 
have the document translated and provided to the requestor as soon as possible. 

 
Road/Parks/Facilities Customer Encounter 
 

1. Road crew employee will immediately contact the Title VI Coordinator for assistance and 
provide an I-speak language identification card to the LEP individual to determine the 
language spoken by the individual.  

2. Once the foreign language is determined, provide information to Title VI Coordinator who 
will contact an interpreter to provide telephonic interpretation.  

3. If the need is for a document to be translated, the Title VI Coordinator will coordinate to 
have the document translated and provided to the requester as soon as possible.  

 
In Writing 
 

1. Once a letter has been received it will be immediately forwarded to the Title VI 
Coordinator. 

2. The Title VI Coordinator will contact a translator to determine the specifics of the letter 
request.  

3. The Title VI Coordinator will work with the selected resource for translation and provide 
the requested service to the individual in a timely manner.  

 
Over the Phone 
 

1. If someone calls into our office speaking another language, every attempt will be made 
to keep that individual on the line until an interpreter can be conferenced into the line, 
and if possible, determine the language spoken by the caller.  

2. Once the language spoken by the caller has been identified, we will proceed with 
providing the requested assistance to the LEP individual.  

 
Staff Training 
The City of Pinole’s Department of Public Works staff will be provided training on the 
requirements for providing meaningful access to services for LEP persons. Training will include 
how to identify a LEP individual’s language and contact and use in-house interpretation services 
and use translation smartphone application to translate in various languages.  
 
LEP Plan Access 
A copy of the LEP plan document can be requested at the City of Pinole’s Department of Public 
Works main office during normal business hours and the Department will make the plan 
available on the website at https://www.ci.pinole.ca.us/government_services/public_works. Any 
person or agency may also request a copy by contacting: 

Misha Kaur 
Senior Project Manager 

Title VI Coordinator 
2131 Pear Street 
Pinole, CA 94564 

Phone: 510-724-9839 
Email: mkaur@ci.pinole.ca.us 

 

 

 

125 of 141

mailto:mkaur@ci.pinole.ca.us


 

Page 19 of 26 
 

ATTACHMENT C 

Discrimination Complaint Procedure for the City of Pinole’s Department of Public Works 
 

Federal law prohibits discrimination on the basis of race, color, national origin, age, sex, or 
disability in any City of Pinole’s Department of Public Works (Department) program or activity. 
This prohibition applies to all branches of the Department, its contractors, consultants, and 
anyone else who acts on behalf of the Department.  
 
Any person who believes they have been discriminated against based on race, color, or national 
origin by the Department may file a Title VI complaint by completing and submitting a Title VI 
Complaint Form. If you need assistance to file your complaint or need interpretation services, 
please contact: 

 
Misha Kaur, Title VI Coordinator 
City of Pinole  
Department of Public Works 
mkaur@ci.pinole.ca.us 
510-724-9839 
 
Who is eligible to file a complaint? 
 
Anyone who believes they have been excluded from participation in, denied the benefits of, or 
otherwise subjected to discrimination under any Department program or activity because of their 
race, color, national origin, age, sex, or disability may file a complaint. 

 
Discrimination includes lack of access, harassment, retaliation and disparate impacts from a 
program or activity. Harassment includes a wide range of abusive and humiliating verbal or 
physical behaviors. Retaliation includes intimidating, threatening, coercing, or engaging in other 
discriminatory conduct against anyone because they filed a complaint or otherwise participated 
in a discrimination investigation. 

 
How do you file a complaint? 
 
Complaints must be filed in writing within 180 days from the last date of the alleged 
discrimination. However, contact Misha Kaur, Title VI Coordinator if you believe your complaint 
may fall outside this deadline. 
 
Reasonable efforts will be made to assist persons with disabilities, non-English speakers, and 
others unable to file a written complaint. For assistance in filing a complaint, please contact 
Misha Kaur, Title VI Coordinator. 
 
Complaints may be submitted via mail, email, fax or in person to: 
 
Misha Kaur, Senior Project Manager 
Title VI Coordinator 
City of Pinole  
Department of Public Works 
mkaur@ci.pinole.ca.us 
510-724-9839 
 

126 of 141

mailto:mkaur@ci.pinole.ca.us
mailto:mkaur@ci.pinole.ca.us


 

Page 20 of 26 
 

Complaints may also be filed directly with the following agencies: 
California Department of Transportation (Caltrans) 
Federal Highway Administration, California Division 
 
What happens after a complaint is filed? 
 
All complaints received by the Department will be forwarded to Caltrans to be submitted to the 
Federal Highway Administration (FHWA) Division Office. Complaints will be sent within one 
business day of receipt. If Headquarters Office of Civil Rights (HCR) determines a Title VI 
complaint against the Department can be investigated by Caltrans, HCR may delegate the task 
of investigating the complaint to Caltrans.  
 
Title VI complaints must be investigated within ninety (90) days. Investigating a complaint 
includes interviewing all parties involved and key witnesses. The investigator may also request 
relevant information such as books, records, electronic information, and other sources of 
information from all involved parties. You may specify if there is a particular individual or 
individuals that you feel should not investigate your complaint due to conflict of interest or other 
reasons. 
 
Please refer to Caltrans Office of Civil Rights website to further assist in Title VI complaint: 
https://dot.ca.gov/programs/civil-rights/title-vi/title-vi-complaint-process 
 
Federal law prohibits retaliation against individuals because they have files a discrimination 
complaint or otherwise participated in a discrimination investigation. Any alleged retaliation 
should be reported in writing to the investigator. 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 

 
 
 

127 of 141

https://dot.ca.gov/programs/civil-rights/title-vi/title-vi-complaint-process


 

Page 21 of 26 
 

Title VI Discrimination Complaint Form 
 

Name of Complainant: __________________________________________________________ 
 
Telephone Number: _______________________________E-mail: _______________________ 

 
What is the most convenient time for us to contact you about this complaint? _______________ 
 
Basis of Discrimination 
 
__________Race   __________Age   __________Other 
 
__________Color   __________Sex 
 
__________National Origin  __________Disability 
 

 
Where did the alleged discrimination take place? _____________________________________ 
 
____________________________________________________________________________ 
 
In your own words, describe the alleged discrimination. Explain what happened and whom you 
believe to be responsible: _______________________________________________________ 
 
____________________________________________________________________________ 
 
____________________________________________________________________________ 
 
____________________________________________________________________________ 
 
____________________________________________________________________________ 
 
____________________________________________________________________________ 
 
____________________________________________________________________________ 
 
____________________________________________________________________________ 
 
____________________________________________________________________________ 
 
____________________________________________________________________________ 
 
____________________________________________________________________________ 
 
____________________________________________________________________________ 
 
____________________________________________________________________________ 
 
____________________________________________________________________________ 
 
____________________________________________________________________________ 

128 of 141



 

Page 22 of 26 
 

 
List any others who may have knowledge of this event. Please provide name, address, city, 
state, and zip code. 
____________________________________________________________________________ 
 
____________________________________________________________________________ 
 
Have you filed this complaint with any other Federal, State, or local agency: or with the Federal 
or State Court? 
_________Yes  ___________No 
 
If yes, check all that apply 
 
__________U.S. Equal Employment Opportunity Commission 
 
__________Federal or State Court 
 
__________Department of Fair Employment and Housing 
 
__________Federal Transit Administration/ U.S. Dept. of Transportation 
 
__________Federal Highway Administration/ U.S. Dept. of Transportation 
 
If you have already filed a charge, please provide the following information: 
 
Agency/Court: ____________________________ Attorney Name: ______________________ 
 
Address: ________________________________ Firm Name: _________________________ 
 
Date Filed: _______________________________ Address: ___________________________ 
 
Case Number: ____________________________ Telephone Number: __________________ 
 
Date of Trial Hearing: _______________________ 
 
Status of case: ________________________________________________________________ 
 
Please provide any additional information that you believe would assist in investigation: 
____________________________________________________________________________ 
 
____________________________________________________________________________ 
 
____________________________________________________________________________ 
 
 
_____________________________________   _______________________ 
Signature of Complainant      Date of Filing 

 

 

 

129 of 141



DB-3309 U.S. DEPARTMENT OF COMMERCE
Economics and Statistics Administration

U.S. CENSUS BUREAU

LANGUAGE IDENTIFICATION FLASHCARD

1. Arabic

2. Armenian

3. Bengali

4. Cambodian

5. Chamorro

6. Simplified
Chinese

7. Traditional
Chinese

8.Croatian

9. Czech

10. Dutch

11. English

12. Farsi

Mark this box if you read or speak English.

2010

Motka i kahhon ya yangin ûntûngnu' manaitai pat ûntûngnu' kumentos Chamorro.

QUmbJÇak'kñ¨g®b/b'enH ebI/ñk/an …niXaXPasa e‡oµe .

Kruis dit vakje aan als u Nederlands kunt lezen of spreken.

Zaškrtněte tuto kolonku, pokud čtete a hovoříte česky.

Označite ovaj kvadratić ako čitate ili govorite hrvatski jezik.

2004 
Census 

Test

.á«Hô©dG çóëàJ hCG CGô≤J âæc GPEG ™HôŸG Gòg ‘ áeÓY ™°V

130 of 141

Misha Kaur
APPENDIX A

Misha Kaur
Page 23 of 26 

Misha Kaur
Page 23 of 26 



DB-3309 U.S. DEPARTMENT OF COMMERCE
Economics and Statistics Administration

U.S. CENSUS BUREAU

14. German

15. Greek

16. Haitian
Creole

17. Hindi

18. Hmong

19. Hungarian

20. Ilocano

21. Italian

22. Japanese

23. Korean

24. Laotian

25. Polish

13. FrenchCocher ici si vous lisez ou parlez le français.

Kreuzen Sie dieses Kästchen an, wenn Sie Deutsch lesen oder sprechen.

Make kazye sa a si ou li oswa ou pale kreyòl ayisyen.

Markaam daytoy nga kahon no makabasa wenno makasaoka iti Ilocano.

Marchi questa casella se legge o parla italiano.

Jelölje meg ezt a kockát, ha megérti vagy beszéli a magyar nyelvet.

Kos lub voj no yog koj paub twm thiab hais lus Hmoob.

Prosimy o zaznaczenie tego kwadratu, jeżeli posługuje się Pan/Pani 
językiem polskim.

131 of 141

Misha Kaur
Page 24 of 26



DB-3309 U.S. DEPARTMENT OF COMMERCE
Economics and Statistics Administration

U.S. CENSUS BUREAU

27. Romanian

28. Russian

29. Serbian

30. Slovak

31. Spanish

32. Tagalog

33. Thai

34. Tongan

35. Ukranian

36. Urdu

37. Vietnamese

38. Yiddish

26. PortugueseAssinale este quadrado se você lê ou fala português.

Označte tento štvorček, ak viete čítať alebo hovoriť po slovensky.

Markahan itong kuwadrado kung kayo ay marunong magbasa o magsalita ng Tagalog.

Marque esta casilla si lee o habla español.

!ометьте этот квадратик, если вы читаете или говорите по-русски.

Maaka 'i he puha ni kapau 'oku ke lau pe lea fakatonga.

5ідмітьте цю клітинку, якщо ви читаєте або говорите українською мовою.

Xin ñaùnh daáu vaøo oâ naøy neáu quyù vò bieát ñoïc vaø noùi ñöôïc Vieät Ngöõ.

132 of 141

Misha Kaur
Page 25 of 26



 

Page 26 of 26 
 

APPENDIX B 

TITLE VI LEP STAFF RESOURCE CARD 
 

Interpretation & Translation Services 
The Department provides reasonable language assistance free of charge upon request. Below 
are some resources if asked for language assistance.  
 
If asked for language assistance, it is always best to use in-house staff as a first resort. This is 
often the quickest method to offer language assistance. First determine the language needed. 
Staff should use the iSpeak cards to verify the person’s language. Once a language has been 
identified, use in-house staff as a first resort.  
 
 Spanish 
 
 Ana Aviles Avila 510-724-9837 

 
 
Access for Visually and Hearing Impaired 
Dial 711 to reach Relay California. Relay California is a free service that provides full telephone 
access to people who are deaf, hard of hearing, deaf-blind, or speech disabled. 
 
  

133 of 141



CITY COUNCIL 
REPORT 9A 

DATE: MAY 19, 2020 

TO: MAYOR AND COUNCIL MEMBERS 

FROM: ANDREW MURRAY, CITY MANAGER 

SUBJECT: CONSIDER A RESOLUTION DIRECTING STAFF TO FLY THE 
RAINBOW FLAG DURING THE MONTH OF JUNE 

RECOMMENDATION 

City staff recommends that the City Council consider a resolution directing staff to fly the 
Rainbow Flag during the month of June. 

BACKGROUND 

LGBTQ+ History Month is a month-long annual observance of lesbian, gay, bisexual, 
and transgender history, and the history of gay rights and related civil rights, currently 
celebrated in the month of June. 

In the United States, the last Sunday in June was initially celebrated as “Gay Pride 
Day,” but the actual date varied. In major cities across the nation the “day” soon grew to 
encompass a month-long series of events. Today, celebrations include pride parades, 
picnics, parties, workshops, symposia, and concerts. LGBTQ+ Pride Month events 
attract millions of participants around the world. Memorials are held during this month 
for those members of the community who have been lost to hate crimes or HIV/AIDS. 
The purpose of the commemorative month is to recognize the impact that lesbian, gay, 
bisexual, and transgender individuals have had on history locally, nationally, and 
internationally. 

REVIEW AND ANALYSIS 

The City Council adopted Resolution No. 2019-51 in June 2019 recognizing June as 
LGBTQ+ month and directing City staff to fly the Rainbow Flag during the month of June 
2019.  At its meeting of May 5, 2020, the City Council approved consideration of again 
flying the Rainbow Flag, and directed staff to bring a future City Council agenda item for 
discussion and action. City staff has prepared the attached resolution (Attachment A) for 
City Council’s consideration. 

FISCAL IMPACT 

None 

134 of 141



 
ATTACHMENTS 
 

A: Resolution 

135 of 141



ATTACHMENT A 

RESOLUTION NO. 2020- XX  

RESOLUTION OF THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF PINOLE,  
COUNTY OF CONTRA COSTA, STATE OF CALIFORNIA,  

 RECOGNIZING JUNE AS LGBTQ+ MONTH AND DIRECTING STAFF TO FLY THE 
RAINBOW FLAG DURING THE MONTH OF JUNE 

WHEREAS, June has become a symbolic month in which LGBTQ+ persons and 
supporters come together in various celebrations of pride; and  

WHEREAS, cities across the United States recognize and celebrate June as 
LGBTQ+ Pride month; and  

WHEREAS, the City of Pinole feels it is important to communicate its support for 
inclusivity and respect in our City, and desires to recognize and celebrate June as 
LGBTQ+ Pride month;  and  

WHEREAS, the Rainbow Flag, also known as the LGBTQ+ Pride Flag or Gay Pride 
Flag, has been used since the 1970s as a symbol of LGBTQ+ pride and social movements; 
and 

WHEREAS, flying the Rainbow Flag at City Hall throughout the month of June 
symbolizes the City of Pinole’s official recognition of June as LGBTQ+ Pride month; and 

WHEREAS, the City Council adopted Resolution No. 2019-51 in June 2019 
recognizing June as LGBTQ+ month and directing City staff to fly the Rainbow Flag during 
the month of June 2019; and 

WHEREAS, the City of Pinole continues to feel that it is important to communicate 
its support for inclusivity and respect. 

NOW THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED that the Pinole City Council directs staff 

to fly the Rainbow Flag at City Hall during the month of June 2020 and each June 

thereafter. 

PASSED AND ADOPTED at a regular meeting of the Pinole City Council held 

on the 19th day of May, 2020 by the following vote: 

AYES: COUNCILMEMBERS: 

NOES: COUNCILMEMBERS: 

ABSENT: COUNCILMEMBERS: 

ABSTAIN: COUNCILMEMBERS: 

I hereby certify that the foregoing resolution was regularly introduced, passed, and 
adopted on the 19th day of May, 2020. 

136 of 141



____________________________ 

Heather Iopu, CMC  
City Clerk 

 

137 of 141



 
 CITY COUNCIL  
 REPORT 10A
  

 

     
 
 
DATE: MAY 19, 2020 
 
TO:  MAYOR AND COUNCIL MEMBERS 
 
FROM: ANDREW MURRAY, CITY MANAGER 
 
SUBJECT: DISCUSSION AND DIRECTION REGARDING HAVING CITY STAFF 

ADD A GRAPHIC PROMOTING CENSUS 2020 TO STAFF’S EMAIL 
SIGNATURE BLOCK 

 

 
RECOMMENDATION 
 

City staff recommends that the City Council discuss and provide direction regarding 
having City staff add a graphic promoting Census 2020 to staff’s email signature block. 
 
BACKGROUND 
 
In February 2020, the City Council adopted the City of Pinole Strategic Plan 2020 – 
2025. It requires that the City create a strategic communication plan to enhance the 
City’s public information, messaging, and marketing. City staff is in the process of 
drafting the communication plan. It will include guidelines for City staff on messaging 
through various communication channels, including format and content of email 
signature blocks. (The email signature block is the text and graphics that might appear 
at the end of an email that state the sender’s name, title, contact information, and 
information on organizational programs or events.) 
 
In the interim, prior to the completion of the communication plan later this year, staff is 
seeking City Council direction regarding having City staff add a graphic promoting 
Census 2020 to staff’s email signature block. The City Council adopted Resolution No. 
2019-92 in October 2019 expressing the City’s support for helping ensure a complete, 
fair, and accurate count in Census 2020 and appointing Mayor Pro Tem Martinez-Rubin 
and the City Clerk as official outreach representatives. The Mayor Pro Tem and City 
Clerk participate in the County Census Steering Committee, and the City has conducted 
significant outreach to the community through the City website, Administrative Report, 
and Police Department Facebook account promoting Census 2020. 
 
Staff expects that, under the communication plan, the City Manager will direct staff from 
time to time to include in its signature block information about various City or City-
sponsored programs or events. Any specific direction that the City Council provides to 
staff from time to time regarding promoting a program or event will complement the 
other programs or events being promoted. 
 

138 of 141



REVIEW AND ANALYSIS 
 

At its meeting of May 5, 2020, the City Council approved consideration of promoting 
Census 2020 through staff email signature blocks as a future City Council agenda item. 
City staff now seeks Council direction. 
 
FISCAL IMPACT 
 
There is no fiscal impact to considering this matter nor directing the City Manager to 
have staff use a standard email signature block promoting Census 2020. 
 
ATTACHMENTS 
 

A. Resolution 

139 of 141



ATTACHMENT A

140 of 141



141 of 141


	2020-05-19 Agenda
	7A
	7B
	7C
	Pinole - SR - Confirming Continued Existence of Emergency 5.19.20
	Pinole- Resolution Confirming Continued Existence of Emergency 5.19.20

	7D
	SR Extension of PC Terms AM comms
	Reso for PC Term Extensions
	2019-20 PC Roster

	7E
	SR RESO 2 yr Amendment RSG Housing Compliance Monitoring 5-19-20
	RESO RSG 2 yr Amend Afforable Compliance Monitoring 2020
	RSG 1st amendment Afford. Compliance Agreement 2020
	RSG Afforable Compliance Contract - signed

	7F
	SR RSG Services for RE Broker 5-19-20
	RESO Approving RSG Broker Services 5-19-20
	Contract Amendment-Task Order #1 RSG 2020 Broker Services
	On-Call RSG Agreement 2018
	Scope of Work  RSG Pinole Property Disposition Services May 2020 v2

	7G
	SSMP 2020 Staff Report Final
	Reso for ssmp 2020 final
	SSMP emergency response plan

	7H
	titlevi_Staffreport Final
	reso title VI final
	TitleVI_Plan

	9A
	Pride Month Staff Report June 2020 FINAL
	Pride Month Reso June 2020 FINAL

	10A
	Email Signature Block Messaging for Census 2020 Council Staff Report FINAL
	72437

	Untitled

	Return to Agenda: 


